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1. OVERVIEW

1. DENEL GROUP
OVERVIEW

The Government of South Africa
(Government) is the sole Shareholder
of Denel and the company reports to
the Minister of Public Enterprises. The
Minister appoints an independent board
of directors to, amongst things others
provide strategic direction and oversight
to the Denel Group. The executive
management team is responsible for the
day-to-day management of the company.

Denel provides turn-key solutions of
defence equipment to its clients by
designing, developing, integrating and
supporting artillery, munitions, missiles,
aircraft  sub-assembly manufacturing,
aircraft maintenance, unmanned aerial
vehicles (UAVS) and optical payloads
based on high-end technology. It

further provides product and logistical
support, including testing and
qualification, maintenance, upgrades

and decommissioning, as and when
required. Denel’s products and solutions
are designed and developed to meet
unique end-user requirements of its
clients including full lifecycle support,
thereby reducing cost of ownership.
Programmes that are being executed
include landward system projects,
missiles, command and control, avionics
upgrades, design and development of
aerostructures components as well as
demining operations. In addition to

specific development and production
capabilities, Denel is a prime contractor
in a number of the South African National
Defence Force (SANDF) programmes,
which positions Denel as a specialist
contractor to global defence suppliers.

Denel plays a significant role in industrial
development via key conventional
technologies, diverse quality productsand
operational capacity through its active
research and development programmes,
product development, manufacturing
and maintenance activities, well-defined
infrastructure and strong human capital
base. As such, investment in research
and development (R&D) has a special
economic significance in extending
Denel’s global footprint, apart from its
conventional association with scientific
and technological development.
The research, design, development,
integration, qualification, certification
and industrialisation are done primarily
in-house with selected specialised
items, outsourced to strategic partner
companies.  Significant elements of
production are outsourced to the broader
South African (SA) manufacturingindustry
whilst some of the Denel businesses are
vertically integrated with production
commencing from raw materials through
to final products. Denel also supports the
local commercial market by supplying
non-defence products. It is a fact that by
leveraging the defence technology base,
innovative applications have been found

- 4
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MINISTER OF
PUBLIC
ENTERPRISES

Chief: SA

Denel Board of :
National

Directors Defence Force

Denel SOC Ltd

Denel Corporate
Office

perre] Denel Dl Mechem

Aerostructures . Aviation
SOC Ltd Dynamics SOC Ltd

PERSONNEL
EMPLOYED

Includes Engineers
and Scientists

Denel TOTAL Associates
4716 6787 2071

MINISTER OF
DEFENCE AND
MILITARY VETERANS

Dept of
Defence
(Secretary of
Defence)

Denel Land
Systems

OTHER
MINISTERS

Armscor
(Procurement)

Associated
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Denel Strategic
Equity Partners

Denel
Denel Overbergf Integrated Supporting
Test Range Systems Businesses
Solutions (DISS)

Denel PMP

Denel Industrial
Properties

Denel Technical

Academy
Densecure SOC
Ltd
[ )
o
[ )
o
Local ® 63%  37% 56% | 44%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DR GC CRUYWAGEN (55)
MSC, PMD, FIRM (SA), RISK
MANAGEMENT DIPLOMA,
CERTIFICATE-ADVANCED
SECURITY MANAGEMENT,
PHD

DENEL BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIPS: Group audit and risk
committee member, chairman of PMP, non-
executive director of Denel Dynamics.
OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS: Chairman of
group risk management committee: City
of Johannesburg, Trustee: GCM, Tsogo Sun
Group Medical Aid Scheme and Tsogo
Sun Pension Fund, director of Tsogo Sun
group (Tsogo Sun Holdings), Executive
director Tsogosure Insurance Company
Ltd, member of the King Il committee on
Corporate Governance, and convenor of the
Risk workgroup of the King Committee on
Corporate Governance (King Il and I1l).
RELEVANT  SKILLS, EXPERTISE AND
EXPERIENCE:  Senior leadership, risk
governance, risk management and risk
financing. Won the ‘Risk Manager of the
Year' award for 2009, from the Institute
of Risk Management of South Africa
(IRMSA). Wrote a book titled Jungle Risk
Management’  Principle author of the
chapter on ‘Governance Risk'.

Appointed to the board on 4 October 2010.

MR F MHLONTLO
(42)

BCOM, BCOMPT
(HONS), CA (SA)

DENEL BOARD AND BOARD
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS:
Permanent invitee of the group
audit and risk, as well as the
personnel
committees,
director of PMP, Denel Properties
and RDM and Trustee of Denel
Post Retirement Trust.

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS: Former
audit partner and director of one
of the big four audit firms.
RELEVANT  SKILLS, EXPERTISE
AND EXPERIENCE: Leadership in
financial management, financial
reporting and discipline,
corporate governance,
understanding of audit process
and strategy formulation.

and remuneration

non-executive

Appointed to the board on 1
November 2008.
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MR JV MORRIS (42)
BSC (HONS)
(PSYCHOLOGY AND
SOCIOLOGY), MSC
(AGRICULTURAL
ECONOMICS)

DENEL BOARD COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIPS:
director of DPS.
OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS:
Served in various positions in
the Department of Trade and
Industry, Trade and Investment
South Africa, Decillion Capital
and the Department of Public
Enterprises, as deputy director-
general: manufacturing.

RELEVANT  SKILLS, EXPERTISE
AND  EXPERIENCE: Strategy
development and execution,
corporate restructuring, mergers

Non-executive

and acquisitions, economic
policy and public sector
knowledge.

Appointed to the to board on 26
May 2009.

MS B PALEDI (40)
——
BA, LLB, LLM (USA) ;

DENEL BOARD AND BOARD
COMMITTEE  MEMBERSHIPS:
Group personnel and
remuneration member, non- =

>
a&?f

executive director Mechem.
OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS:
Metropolitan, former director ..
of International Bank Vaults, -
non-executive  director _of =
ICC (DBN), Executive Director
Ndamse Faku
investment Holdings, member
of Qiniseka Investments.
RELEVANT SKILLS, EXPERTISE "
AND EXPERIENCE: Leadership, i

legal business
management.
e

Inc™ "and

.
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Appointed to the board on 20
July 2011.
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MR C GROESBEEK & MR | DOCKRAT (42)

(45)

M.SC.
MECHANICAL
ENGINEERING
AERONAUTICS,
MBA

DENEL BOARD AND BOARD
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS:
None
OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS: Chief
Executive Officer i3 Africa,
CHAIRMAN Revax Mining
RELEVANT SKILLS, EXPERTISE
AND EXPERIENCE: Cornelis
has keen insight in to the
various global factors, drivers,
influences,
competencies
required as well- as the
numerous contractual pitfalls
that companies are subjected
to in the globalised aerospace
and telecommunications
environments,
as  strategic
development  of
roadmaps  for
teams of companies in these
sectors.

environmental
national

and  acts
advisor for
future

executive

Appointed to the board on 26
May 2009.

FURE

.ul

MBA, CERTIFICATE IN PROGRAMME
MANAGEMENT, NDIP ELECTRONICS
ENGINEERING

DENEL BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS: Previously
Chief Executive Officer of Denel Aviation, non-executive director
Turbomeca Africa and Denel Personnel Services.

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS: Former positions include Chief Executive
Officer of Wesgro, General Manager at TISA and Project Manager
at Armscor.

RELEVANT SKILLS, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE: Strategic
leadership, business management, programme management and
turnaround management.

Appointed to the executive committee on 1 March 2010.

——

MS C M SLABBERT (30)
BCOM, BCOMPT (HONS)(CTA),

55 CA (SA), ADVANCED EXECUTIVE
“< DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME
DENEL BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS:
Chief Financial Officer DAe, Formerly on the Audit &
# | Risk Committee of Denel Training Academy

L. OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS: None

= RELEVANT SKILLS, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE:
Expertise in Financial Management and ensuring
a good internal control environment and the
implementation of Corporate  governance
principles. Experience in turnaround strategies and
the implementation thereof.

Appointed to the executive committee
on 5 October 2010.
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CONTRIBUTION

FROM THE CEO

CONTRIBUTION FROM THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

For centuries humans have watched the birds and
desired the ability to fly. This has been possible
for just over a hundred years now. The journey to
human flight is an extraordinary journey of science
and technology but also of passion and adventure
and continues to be one of the most magical
experiences available to us. The theme of this Annual
Report reflects our pride, passion and commitment
to being associated with the business of making
things fly.

The 2011/12 financial year produced a number
of significant highlights which contributed to the
on-going turnaround of Denel Aerostructures and
provided a firm basis for a sustainable future for the
company.

Among these are:

«  The negotiation of a restructured agreement
with Airbus Military on the work packages
done by Denel Aerostructures for the Airbus
A400M programme.

« The announcement of a R700m
recapitalisation of the business by the
Minister of Finance.

« A continued commitment to operational
excellence which included restructuring,
improved utilisation of floor space and
streamlined production and output.

« A name change to Denel Aerostructures
and the relaunch of the company as South
Africa’s leading manufacturer of advanced
aircraft structures and a valued participant in
international programmes.

The turnaround in the business of Denel
Aerostructures takes place against the background
of a global economic downturn which had a very
specific and severe impact on both the defence and
civilian aerospace markets.

Despite the economic slowdown there remains a
strong potential for growth in both the defence
and civilian markets that can provide a number of
new business prospects for the company. This will
enable Denel Aerostructures to further improve its
financial performance and reduce its historic losses
to the point where a return to profitability over the
medium term can be safely projected.

But, more importantly, the company has now
entrenched itself as a global player in the
aerostructures industry and a reliable Tier 1 and 2
supplier to the world’s leading original equipment
manufacturers.

The company’s improved performance can be

attributed to the successful implementation of its

turnaround strategy which cuts across all aspects of

the business:

«  Sound corporate governance and financial
controls.

+  Restructuring of the Airbus A400M contracts;

« Achieving operational excellence;

« Industrial restructuring;

« Investment in people and transformation;

« Contributions to the National Aerospace
Sector Development Plan and

«  Growing new markets and revenue

SOUND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE AND FINANCIAL
CONTROLS

The company can reportimprovementinits financial
performance with the net loss improving to (R78)
million from (R328) million in March 2010. The cash
utilised decreased to R66 million in the year under
review from more than R 300 million in March 2010.
The balance sheet came under further pressure
because of the decision by SAAB to terminate
its partnership with Denel and exit the business.
Towards the end of the financial year came the

el
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welcome announcement by the Minister of Finance in his
Annual Budget Speech that Denel Aerostructures will be
recapitalised to an amount of R700 million.

These funds, which will be disbursed in the 2012/2013
financial year, will significantly strengthen the company’s
balance sheet and enable management to complete the
implementation of the turnaround strategy earlier than
originally anticipated.

The company received an unqualified audit report from
the External Auditors for the second successive year which
speaks volumes for the quality of financial management and
controls.

RELATIONSHIP WITH AIRBUS MILITARY

The work packages that DAe delivers for the production
of the Airbus A400M are the core business activities of
the company. A strategic decision was taken to scale the
company’s capabilities in line with the A400M technology
requirements and to leverage this as the basis for future
expansion in the business.

A major milestone in the relationship with Airbus Military
was achieved with the signing of a term sheet agreement
between the two companies in November 2011 following
a constructive process of negotiations. This agreement
contains improved legal conditions as well as more equitable
terms and prices that will benefit DAe.

A formal agreement will be signed in the 2012/13 financial
year providing the company with a significant degree of
stability on the future of the relationship.

Denel Aerostructures is the only Tier 1 manufacturer on the
Airbus A400M outside Europe and is responsible for the
design, industrialisation and production of critical parts such
as the Wing-to-Fuselage Fairing and the Top Shells.

The quality of design, engineering and workmanship
performed by DAe has been repeatedly praised by the senior
leadership at Airbus and it is not inconceivable that the
company will become responsible for more work packages
in the future.

As the A400M enters its serial production phase DAe will
ramp up its manufacturing schedules from eight ship sets in
2013 to, eventually, 24 - two per month - from 2015 onwards
for the duration of the programme.

ACHIEVING OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE

The achievements on the A400M are supplemented by a
number of other production milestones reached during the
past financial year. The 100th empennage for the Gulfstream
G150 was delivered on schedule; the company successfully
completed its contracts for the manufacturing of key
components such as main rotor heads and blades for the
AgustaWestland A109 LUH helicopter as well as Main Landing
Gear and fuselage units for the SAAB Gripen programme.

The solid reputation earned by DAe for the quality of its
workmanship and its commitment to delivery on time has
raised its profile among a wide range of major participants in
the global aerospace industry.

| am confident that we will, in the coming financial year, be
able to build on this solid reputation, expand our reach and
secure more business from a number of original equipment
manufacturers.

INDUSTRIAL RESTRUCTURING

During the year under review Denel Aerostructures took
important steps to restructure its operations and streamline
its engineering and manufacturing processes. We made
progress in reducing the company’s rental footprint from
74 000 m* to 25 000 m* and bringing the entire operations
under one roof. This major move of staff, equipment and
processes will be completed by the end of the 2012 calendar
year — without the company missing a single deadline to
date or compromising on the quality of our workmanship.

In line with the new strategic vision of the Denel Group,
DAe also proceeded with the streamlining of management
functions, improved controls over our supply chain and the
sharing of non-core services with other entities in the group.
Senior management and the company’s dedicated and
highly committed staff must be congratulated for their
efforts towards the reorganisation of our business which
will, no doubt, contribute to the long-term viability of the
company.

INVESTMENT IN PEOPLE AND
TRANSFORMATION

The quality of the people working for DAe remains the
company’s most important asset. DAe is fortunate to be able
to retain a highly-skilled workforce that enables us to compete
effectively in a competitive high-technology environment.

Although we are making progress with our B-BBEE profile,
transformation remains a challenge that will require further

initiatives in the coming year. We also intend to support the
sustained growth of small and medium enterprises through
our progressive supplier development programme.

I have no doubt that the tangible improvementsin ourfinancial
position and the successful delivery on key milestones have
contributed to a strengthening of morale in the company and
the growth of a strong sense of commitment and esprit de
corps among our work force.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE NATIONAL
AEROSPACE SECTOR DEVELOPMENT
PLAN

We place a high value on our relationship with our shareholder,
as represented by the Department of Public Enterprises. | also
want to thank the Chairman and Board of Denel Aerostructures
as well as senior management in Denel SOC for their continued
commitment during the company’s most challenging years.
We are looking forward to a productive period when DAe will
not only make a positive contribution to the balance sheet of
the group, but also fulfil its immense potential as a premier
high-tech manufacturing company in the broader economy.

Through its activities Denel wants to contribute to the
government’s broad developmental objectives to grow an
economy that will address unemployment and poverty and
raise the skills and educational levels of society.

The company fully supports the Aerospace Sector
Development Plan designed to grow the industry in coming
years and we are keenly enthusiastic about our potential
to be at the core of a future Aerotropolis, as envisaged by
the Ekurhuleni Metropolitan Municipality and the Gauteng
Provincial Government.

GROWING NEW MARKETS AND
REVENUE

Denel Aerostructures has strengthened its business
development capacity with key new appointments as well as a
thorough overhaul of its bidroom processes. This will place the
company in an advantageous position to secure new orders
and penetrate new markets.

We intend to leverage our position in the Airbus supplier
network to engage with other global OEMs such as Boeing,
Bombardier, Embraer and Gulfstream.

South Africa’s strengthening international profile, including
its membership of the BRICS alliance, should open up further
opportunities for strategic partnerships and the company will
remain closely aligned to the Government's fleet procurement
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programmes for SAA and SA Express to benefit from industrial
participation commitments.

KEY CHALLENGES

Although great progress has been made with the turnaround
of the company, there remain various risks and challenges
that need to be addressed to ensure sustainability. Among
these are:
Maturing of the industrial capacity to deliver on-time,
quality and cost-effective products to meet highly-
exacting global standards;

« Aggressively pursuing improvements in productivity
and efficiencies to remain globally competitive;
Securing new business to ensure the long-term
viability of the company;

Strengthening the human resource base and skills at
all levels of the organisation;

+ Actively advancing transformation and employment
equity - especially at middle management and
technical levels.

FUTURE PERSPECTIVE

| am confident that Denel Aerostructures has turned a critical
corner and that we will continue with the sustained turn-
around of the company and achieve viability in the near future.

South Africa’s strengthened profile on the continent of Africa
and as part of the BRICS group of emerging countries will
open up exciting new opportunities for the company in the
international environment.

Denel Aerostructures has established a firm foothold as a
reliable, top tier supplier to global manufacturers and we have
the proven track record and capacity to expand our operations
beyond the defence environment into the civilian industry.

Despitethe currentslumpin the global economylam confident
about the long-term future of the aviation and aerospace
industries. South Africa has the capabilities and the ingenuity
to grow its own aerospace industry and become a global
leader in niche manufacturing sectors. Denel Aerostructures
intends to be a valuable participant and innovative leader in
such initiatives.

T

Ismail Dockrat
CEO Denel Aerostructures




OPERATIONS

Arguably one of the leading aerospace
companies in Africa, DAe is associated
with the best OEM’s in the global
industry and expands its capabilities
to be recognised as one of the most
reliable suppliers.

DAe invests extensively to establish
modernised, world-class facilities for
high-end aerostructures machining,
composites, assembly and special
processes. The Operations department
is ensuring optimal alignment and
integration beginning with product
industrialization, supply chain
management through to aerostructures
production, assembly and delivery to
customers.

Driving cost competitive-, on-time and
on-quality deliveries to our customers
remains at the heart of DAe operations.
Our Sustainable Transformation
Effectiveness Project (STEP) continues
to serve as Operations’ vehicle to
drive and facilitate  continuous
improvement initiatives in line with
DAe’s transformation and turnaround
strategy, focusing on  reducing
operational costs, and improving
efficiencies and production throughput.

DAe is located at the core of the
country’s largest aerospace cluster,

located next to OR Tambo International
airport in Johannesburg, Africa’s largest
and busiest airport. This hub has already
attracted various aviation companies as
well as a growing number of supply and
partner industries. A strategic industrial
and economic asset for South Africa
and a primary contributor to the growth
of the aerospace sector and high-tech
manufacturing on the continent -DAe
is ideally positioned to be a strategic
aerospace design and manufacturing
partner.

Ekurhuleni’s strategic plans to develop
an Aerotropolis around the airport will
provide momentum to the growth of
the aerospace sector, which has been
singled out by government for its ability
to provide the country with long-term
advanced manufacturing capabilities.

DAe is consolidating its operations in a
move that will improve efficiency and
cut costs significantly. The move will
see the company’s entire production
process brought under one roof at
Denel's Kempton Park campus. By
cutting down on our production
costs and streamlining the workflow
the consolidation will contribute to
the long-term sustainability of the
company.

DAe is one of

a select few
manufacturers,
outside of Europe,
responsible for
the design and
manufacturing
of structural
parts fitted to the
versatile Airbus
A400M.

Theo Kleynhans
Chief Operations Officer
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The Wing to Fuselage Fairing

The Top Shells



'
o
b |

FINANCE

KEY HIGHLIGHTS FOR
THE YEAR

A Recapitalisation of R700m for
Denel Aerostructures has been
announced by the Finance
Minister in his budget speech in
February 2012.

Denel Aerostructures (DAe)
has undertaken fundamental
restructuring during the past
two years which has resulted in
improved financial and delivery
performance, and contracted
key performance indicators
being met.

DAe has successfully
renegotiated its Airbus A400M
work packages, subject to
formal contract amendments.
The A400M programme
now supports a viable and
sustainable business case for
the Aerostructures entity in the
long term.

Airbus  A400M  deliveries:
Engineering/Certification and
production on-time and on-
quality. Airbus praised DAe as
one of its most reliable and
technically competent A400M
suppliers.

Rental footprint reduction
by more than 60% (ongoing)
and headcount restructuring
completed to A400M focused
capability.

Substantially reduced reported
audit queries, obtained an
unqualified (2011/12) audit
opinion and improved cash
control.
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REVENUE
7 % - R260m

REVENUE

RM

2007 / 2008 YE 2008 /2009 YE 2009/2010YE 2010/2011YE

700
600
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0

2011/2012YE

OPERATING COST

OPERTAING

COST
18%-R125m
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400
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0

2008 /2009 YE 2009/2010YE 2010/2011YE 2011/2012YE

RM

RM
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CASH BEFORE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
CASH BEFORE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
38 % -R65m

500

400
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100

2008 /2009 YE 2009/2010YE 2010/2011YE 2011/2012YE

RM

DAYS
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NET LOSS POSTED
67 % - R78m
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120 ® (excl. indemnity)
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Debtors Days YTD March 2012



7/

\as spent a total of R4m on

development and learning

nmes for the current ™
year. \

RESOURCES

Denel Aerostructures (DAe) has developed HR strategies intended to ensure

that the company’s business objectives and plans are achieved. Aerostructures

has undergone huge organisational changes over the past year.

. Part of DAes key achievements were related to transformation
which included receiving a level 4 BBBEE contribution certificate and
transformation score of 78.4% for implementation of its transformation
plans which is second in the Denel Group for the second consecutive year;

+ 37 Newly qualified artisans were trained during the year with trades in
aircraft structures; composites; turner machinist; tool making and aircraft
spray-painting.

«  DAe supports youth skills development and stimulating an interest in
aerospace technology with a social programme in collaboration with Kids
Haven.

DEVELOPING SKILLS

EMPLOYEE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES
DAe has spent a total of R4, 06m on skills development and learning
programmes for the current financial year.

LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME

All DAe Managers have undergone intensive psychometric assessments
and have received individual reports which outline development areas.
Personal mastery workshops have also been conducted. The Unisa SBL Denel
leadership and management development programmes were launched
in June 2011, as part of yet another method of closing the leadership gaps

# identified.

Y et SUCCESSION PLANNING

DAe developed a succession planning framework (called the Talent
Optimisation Programme), which assists with the identification of talent .
and provides a pool of candidates as possible successors for both leadership
and technical roles.
—
N
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EMPLOYEE STUDY BURSARIES

SOURCING AND SUPPLY TRAINING

ARTISAN TRAINING

TRANSFORMATION
COMPANIES B-BBEE PERFORMANCE
2010/11 VS. 2011/12

IMPROVING ORGANISATIONAL
CLIMATE
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L€ | DAeis contracted as design authority for two
main work packages on the Airbus A400M,
namely the Wing-to-Fuselage Fairing (WFF)
and the Centre fuselage’s Topshells.

Denel Aerostructures (DAe) maintains
a highly skilled engineering contingent
of approximately 60 permanent
employees, supported by fixed term
contractors during times of peak
loading.

MAIN PROGRAM ACTIVITIES

During the 2012 financial year
approximately two thirds of DAe's
development work related to its
activities on the Airbus A400M
program. DAe is contracted as design
authority for two main work packages
on the Airbus A400M, namely the
Wing-to-Fuselage Fairing (WFF) and
the Centre fuselage’s Topshells.

While A400M design activities for the
2012 financial year was mainly focused
on embodiment of several customer
modifications  into the second
baseline design, stress activities were
strategically focused towards DAe's
contractual obligations to support
Airbus’ aircraft Type Certification
application to  the  European
Airworthiness authorities (EASA). DAe
successfully managed to supply all
Stress Dossiers required on both its
work packages for Type Certification
by the first quarter of 2012, in full
compliance to Airbus requirements.

DAe€’s strong engineering performance
on the Airbus A400M has resulted in
several written accolades from Airbus
and public acknowledgements at
Airbus media events over the past year.
Denel Aerostructures also provides

ENGINEERING

engineering support to its sister
company Denel Aviation on its Rooivalk
attack helicopter program in terms of
design office and structural analysis
support.

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

DAe has a well-structured incubation
program where junior engineers and
techniciansare allocated toengineering
tasks under direct mentorship of senior
engineers in a range of specialist fields.
This allows South African engineers
to gain the pre-requisite years of
experience required by international
Original Equipment Manufacturers
(OEMs) such as Airbus in order to be
accredited to sign off on engineering
deliverables within their OEM system.

TECHNOLOGY
DEVELOPMENT

DAe has established a collaboration
network with the Council of Scientific
and Industrial Research (CSIR) and
the University of the Witwatersrand
(Wits) on research and technology
development. The collaboration has
the aim for academic institutions and
the CSIR to focus on blue sky and basic
technology research (Technology
Readiness Level TRL 1 to 4, while DAe
will focus on proof of concept and
product- and process technologies
(TRL levels TRL 5 - TRL 9) that
strengthens South Africa’s industrial
capabilities in Aerostructures advanced
manufacturing.

ah

Willie van der Walt

Executive Manager, Engineering
.
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) BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES

Based on the DAe€’s Vision, Mission and overall strategic relevance, Business Devel-

opment has established plans and objectives aimed at achieving the following:

«  Positioning the organisation as a Tier 1 and Tier 2 supplier within the
International Aerospace supply chain

+  Presenting the organisation as a reliable link in the global aer supply
chain 1

«  Positioning the organisation as a catalyst for Aerospace Advance ring
in the local and international markets.

«  Focuson peoplein effort toimprove organisation climate through entrenching
a culture that is derived from values, a culture that embraces diversity and
participation.

In the 2011/2012 financial year, the Business Development team has managed to
embark on initiatives in support of the above objectives.

INTERNAL STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
INFORMATION, COMMUNICATION AND PARTICIPATION

IMBIZO’S

The CEO’s quarterly Imbizo initiative was conducted with success. Due to the sig-
nificant changes within Denel Aerostructures, this year saw much value being
drawn from the Imbizo’s. During watershed moments of the exit of SAAB, the com-
pany name change and the establishment of new values, Imbizo’s were convened
and used to communicate vital information, where employees were afforded op-
portunities to publicly express their views, concerns and question.

LEKGOTLA
The Lekgotla initiatives, aimed at bringing together the top leadership, organised
labour and selected shop floor employees, were held with success. Discussions on
strategy, key business challenges and company performance were held and much
value was drawn from having perspectives and views from across all levels of lead-
ership within the organisation.
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INTERNAL COMMUNIQUE: CELEBRATIONS FOR INTERNAL
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

ACCESS TO MARKET INFORMATION
AND INTELLIGENCE

CAMPAIGNS FOR ACTIVATION AND
PARTICIPATION

THE FOLLOWING INTERNAL

INITIATIVES WERE SUPPORTED AND

CELEBRATED WITH MUCH VIGOR AND EXTERNAL STAKEHOLDER
SUCCESS: ENGAGEMENT



QUALITY

During May 2012, DAe was successfully audited against the AS9100
Revision “C" requirements.

DAe holds 5 accreditations for Special Processes from Nadcap (National
Aerospace and Defense Contractors Accreditation Program). These are
in the following disciplines:

1) Heat Treatment (Aluminum)

2) Surface Enhancement (Shot Peening)

3) Non Destructive Testing (Magnetic and Fluorescent)

4) Chemical Conversion Coating (Surface Treatments)

5) Composites

The A400M program is progressing well and during August 2012 DAe
will be delivering the MSN 12 for both the Wing Fuselage Fairing and
the Top Shells to Airbus. The feedback from Airbus is that DAe ranks
among the top echelons of all its suppliers from an “On time” and “On
quality” perspective.

DAe has successfully completed 603 high quality deliveries to SAAB
Sweden for the Gripen Fighter Aircraft. These deliveries consisted of
NATO Pylons, Main Landing Gear Structural Assemblies and Rear fuse
Structural Assemblies. The program has now been completed and the
Jigs are being returned to Sweden.

“First Time Pass “tool: This is a Quality tool being developed to measure
throughput and to identify problem areas, parts and processes.
Monitoring will be done by Quality and the ownership to resolve
problems and to create Root cause corrective actions will be within the
control of the facility managers.
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4. SUSTAINABILITY
REPORT .

1 ABOUT THIS REPORT

This sustainability report is aimed at transformation efforts, as well as key non-
providing a balanced, transparent financial performance indicators. The
and understandable view of DAe's sustainability report aims to present a
sustainability ~ activities during the balanced view and disclose relevant and
year under review. It includes the material information to stakeholders.
company’s impacts and contributions

to the economic, social and natural The report is based on global reporting
environment in which it conducts its initiative (GRI) guidelines and leading
business. The report demonstrates the practice within the defence and aerospace
company’s attitude and commitment industry.

to sustainable development, and is a

means of communicating its attitude and

commitment to its Shareholder, partners,

customers, employees, stakeholder

communities and the general public.

The sustainability report provides

comprehensive commentary on the

organisation’s sustainability and
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2 SUSTAINABILITY VISION,
STRATEGY AND COMMITMENTS

STRATEGIC RELEVANCE OF THE
ENTITY:

Catalyst for Aerostructures advanced manufacturing
in the broader economy and foreign currency earner
through exports.

VISION:

The reliable African link in the global aerostructures

supply chain:

«  providing on-time quality, service and value for our
customers

« aprosperous company for our employees and owners.

MISSION:

Uses advanced manufacturing technologies to design and

produce complex composite and metallic aircraft structures.

«  Positioned as aTier 1 and 2 supplier in the international
Aerospace supply chain, supplying aerostructures to
OEM’s such as Airbus & Super Tier 1 customers.

- Developing and working with local Tier 3 and 4 parts
manufacturing suppliers as part of its growing supply
chain.

CORE PRODUCTS:

Design and manufacturing of metallic and composite
aerostructures at Tier 2 level (i.e. major aerostructures
subsystems)

BBBEE rating: Level 4

STRATEGIC IMPERATIVES:

In reviewing the DPE strategic intent in so far as it relates

to DAe, the most relevant strategic imperative is to “act

as a catalyst for advanced manufacturing in the broader
economy and to export products to improve revenue”.

With regards to the additional drivers, all remain relevant

and form part of the DAe business strategy and turnaround

plan. In particular the following is worth noting:

- Towards “Rationalisation of the business” — DAe
has started a “scale to A400M capabilities” strategy
and is implementing an extensive “A2 footprint
consolidation” project

«  Towards “Limited dependence on defence”, >90% of
DAe’s production is currently for the export market
and the business development strategy has specific
focus on increasing its “commercial aerospace”
portfolio.

«  Towards “Skills development and transformation” —
DAe has improved its BBBEE rating, transformation

actions are on-going and DAe is playing a unique
role in the development of aerospace and advanced
manufacturing skills on all levels from artisan through
to engineer.

STRATEGIC DRIVERS:

Linked to the DPE strategic intent, the following are

considered strategic drivers for DAe:

.« Government’s New Growth Path (NGP) and Industrial
Policy Action Plan (IPAP2) mandate, a movement to
a knowledgebased economy to obtain sustained
economic growth and social development.

+ Indeveloping countries such as South Africaadvanced
manufacturing and other productive sectors of the
economy are regarded as the engines of long-term
sustainable growth and job creation.

«  Aerospace is the most effective sector for generation
ofindustrial technology and development of technical
skills to drive economic development (aerospace has
an economic impact multiplier effect of 4).

«  IPAP2 priority sectors include advanced materials and
aerospace which has the potential to develop long
term advanced capabilities in South Africa.

«  The IPAP2 Aerospace Sector Development Plan (SDP)
is to be finalised soon by DTI/DST and industry (AMD),
with the establishment of a Joint Steering Committee

DENEL AEROSTRUCTURES | 45

for Aerospace as a key next step.

+ Government intends to develop proposals to
enhance access to concessional industrial financing
for investment in IPAP.

«  Procurement legislation regulations and practices
enable the use of large and strategic aircraft ‘fleet’

procurements to be targeted towards local advanced

manufacturing industrial participation.

RESTRUCTURING:

Denel Aerostructures (DAe) has undertaken fundamental
restructuring during the past two years which has resulted
in improved financial and delivery performance, and
contracted key performance indicators being met. DAe
has successfully renegotiated its A400M programme,
subject to formal contract amendments to be concluded
in 2012/2013. This now supports a viable and sustainable
business case for the company in the long term.

Industrial restructuring is on-going to reduce rental costs
and improve productivity. Interventions are underway to
achieve operational excellence, a high performance culture
and continually improve commercial competiveness. The
strategy going forward is to scale capabilities to A400M
technical requirements and to simultaneously secure new
orders aligned to such A400M technologies and capabilities.

o
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»  Imbizo's:

Lekgotlas:
3 STAKEHOLDER'S ENGAGEMENT

INTERNAL

Milestone achievements:

EXTERNAL

Internal communiqué:

Nelson Mudua‘,

Nelson Mandela Day
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4 TURNAROUND PLAN AND STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

DAe successfully implemented its turnaround plan and met its strategic priorities

s
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Operational Excellence

Meet all Contractual

commitments including

(A400M WFF and TS, Gripen

RF and MLGU, G150, A109

and Rooivalk)

+ Implement A400M WFF early
Production Ramp-up

« Sustainable Transformation
and Enhancement Project
(STEP)

« Interrogation of programme

performance and

Airbus A400M

Negotiation

« Review and agree recurring
prices and treatment of non-
recurring and modification
cost

« Review and agree
contractual Terms and
Conditions

+ Concluded by 2012/2013
year.

Restructuring

« Contract negotiations with
key customers

+ Further reduction in the
rental footprint from
50000m? to 25000m?
through consolidating all
activities into the A2 building
- including the composites
facility

+ Reduction in key cost drivers
« Further outsourcing of

non-core activities to reduce
fixed costs to variable costs

Learning Culture & Skills
Retention

« Critical skills mapping,

retention incentives and
reward and recognition
programmes

« Promote a high performance

learning culture

« Revised skills development

plan, mentorship and
coaching including “Young
Leaders Forum”

Long Term Support &

Strategic Alignment

« Align DAe to DPE’s national
strategic goals linked to
IPAP2 and Aerospace Sector
Development Plan

« Ongoing restructuring

and negotiation to reduce
funding requirement

« Improving balance sheet

solvency

Sales & Marketing

« Pursue potential new
business to double revenue
over the next three years

- Secure strong Government
support for new orders

« Focus on the Airbus Tier 1
supply chain

« Repositioning and
rebranding DAe

improvement of programme

management methodologies
« Strengthen bid room

management and processes

5 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

OVERVIEW - INTRODUCTION

The company has a mature corporate governance process
that meets most of the requirements of the King lll Report,
as well as the new Companies Act that became effective
on 1 April 2011.

Statements regarding our adherence to the King Il Report
principles on corporate governance are set out in this
report. This report details certain governance principles
and the main duties of the chairman, committees and
chief executive. The board charter includes a schedule of
matters reserved for the board and the terms of reference
of various board committees.

The directors are committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, which is seen as
fundamental in discharging fiduciary duties. The board
provides leadership, strategic oversight and oversees
the control environment in order to achieve and sustain
value to the company’s Shareholder and stakeholders.
The board ensures that principles of good governance
and accountability are adhered to. All of the members of
the board are individually and collectively aware of their
responsibilities to the company’s stakeholders as each

« Enhance cash flow
management

director brings experience, independence of character
and judgement.

RESPONSIBILITY AND
ACCOUNTABILITY

The board is responsible for ensuring that adequate and
effective process of corporate governance is established
and maintained. In executing this mandate, the board
has acted in accordance with the approved corporate
governance systems that is supported by the company’s
internal policies, internal controls and regulations that has
been approved by Denel SOC Ltd.

The day to day governance is the responsibility of DAe’s
management, which regularly reports to the various
committees and board. Both the board and the audit
and risk committee chairman play an active role in
driving and addressing the corporate governance issues
that arise from time to time through regular interaction
with executive directors, senior management and other
stakeholders as and where necessary.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The company is governed by a board, comprising of
seven members: Two executive directors being the chief
executive officer and the chief financial officer as well as

five non-executive directors, three of which are deemed
to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RETIREMENT OF
DIRECTORS

DAe’s  Shareholder appoints independent non-
executive directors and the chairman of the board. The
executive directors are appointed by the board and
are communicated to the Shareholder to complete the
process. Inline with the requirements of good governance,
the Shareholder reviews the composition of the board on
a regular basis.

Executive directors are not subject to a rotation process,
as they oversee the day-to-day running of the company.
They are held accountable for the operational and
management performance of the company.

DIRECTORS FORMALISED
APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

Executive directors have contracts of employment with
the company, whilst non-executive directors have their
appointments formalised by a letter of appointment
from the Shareholder. This appointment letter indicates
the non-executive directors’ term of office as well as
information pertaining to remuneration.

Remuneration payable to non-executive directors includes
fees for attending board meetings, sub-committee, ad
hoc and relevant entity boards. The fees are based on the
guidelines provided and approved by the Shareholder at
the AGM.

DIRECTORS' INDEPENDENCE

The directors’ independence is guided by the King
lll Report, the Companies Act and best practice. The
independence of individual non-executive directors is
considered at every board meeting

The directors of the board serve in the audit and risk and
personnel and remuneration committees. The board is
satisfied that the directors bring insight and experience
that is independent of management and the Shareholder.

BOARD INDUCTION AND SHARING OF
INFORMATION

New directors undergo a detailed induction to ensure
a comprehensive understanding of the Company’s
legislative framework, governance processes, delegation
of authority and business operations. Directors are
continuously briefed on relevant new legislation and
regulations.
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BOARD MEETINGS

DAe holds four scheduled board meetings annually as
well as an AGM. All documents that are submitted to
the board for discussions are meticulously prepared by
the executives taking into account matters arising from
previous board meetings, ensuring completeness and
other relevant matters for the board’s consideration.
Non-executive directors have unfettered access to the
executive team and any other employees of the group to
seek explanations and clarifications on any matter/s prior
to or following a board meeting. This facilitates the board’s
discussions and assists it in reaching speedy but informed
decisions.

Members of the executive committee attend the board
meetings as and when they need, to report to the board
on their respective operational areas. The following table
depicts the meetings of the board and the attendance of
each member.

COMPANY SECRETARIAL

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring systems
and processes approved by the Shareholder are followed,
which enable the board to discharge specific functions
efficiently and effectively. She is responsible for advising
the board on corporate governance issues, monitoring

J A
BOARD MEMBER BOARD MEETINGS

1 ]

COMMITTEE MEMBER —-—
Dr G C Cruywagen (Chairman) V vV
Mr L C Jones (Chairman) t Vv -
Mr | Dockrat (CEO) Vv Vv
Ms V Ravjee (Company Secretary) V Vv
Mr MT Sadik t A -
Mr R Saloojee* = -
Mr C Groesbeek vV Vv
Ms B Paledi v A
Mr J Morris vV Vv
Mr F Mhlontlo v V
Ms C Slabbert Vv v

+ Terminations, *Appointments, A Apology

compliance with relevant legislation as well as keeping
the board updated on new applicable legislation.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The board has established and delegated specific roles
and responsibilities to two standing committees, namely,
the audit and risk committee and the personnel and
remuneration committee.

Each committee’s role, responsibilities, and membership
are in accordance with the terms of reference, approved by
the board. These terms of reference are reviewed annually
to ensure that they remainin line with relevant regulations,
company’s requirements, and business climate, to ensure
thatitisin line with best practice in corporate governance.

Meetings of the board committees are held three times
a year. Members of the executive committee are regular
attendees at the board and committee meetings in line
with their roles and responsibilities.

In order to keep the board abreast of the committee’s
activities, the minutes of the committees are included in
the board meeting pack for information, and significant
matters discussed at these committee meetings are
debated by the board.

1 1 13 22

Vv Vv Vv Vv 6/6
- - - - 1/6
v Vv Vv vV 6/6
Vv Vv Vv Vv 6/6
- - - - 0/6
- - - Vv 1/6
A vV v vV 5/6
Vv v Vv Vv 5/6
Vv Vv v Vv 6/6
Vv Vv A A 4/6
Vv Vv Vv vV 6/6

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

Membership of the audit and risk committee, including
its chairman, comprises of independent non-executive
directors, and the executive directors are standing invitees
in committee meetings. All members of the committee
have considerable financial and risk management
experience necessary to oversee and guide the Board.
These include the audit and risk functions, the governance
of risk and IT risk as recommended by King Ill.

The committee hastermsofreferencethatarereviewedand
updated for relevant new legislation and best practice. The
committee’s mandate is to ensure the integrity of financial
reporting; the adequacy of governance; soundness of
internal control environment and robustness of risk
management processes. The roles and responsibilities of
the committee include the following:

Reviews the financial statements and consider reports
of the auditors on the financial statements.

AUDIT & RISK MEETINGS
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Mr F Mhlontlo (Chairman)

Mr T Zwelibanzi

Ms V Ravjee (Company Secretary)
Mr C Groesbeek *
AUDITORS

Mr L P van Breda (E &Y)

MS C J Kujenga (E &Y)

MS C van Wyk (E &Y)

MS | Gray (Deloitte)

Mr E Bosh (Deloitte)

Ms C Le Grange (PwC)

Ms V Harrypersadh (PwC)
STANDING INVITEES
Mr | Docrat (CEO)

Ms C Slabbert (CFO)

Ms L Viviers

Mr G Kapp T
+ Terminations, *Appointments, A Apology

—
< = < N
W
< = < B
—
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«  Reviews risk registers, paying attention to risks,
mitigation actions and the overall risk management
process.

«  Reviews the effectiveness of the company’s internal
controls.

«  Considers matters emanating from the company’s
ethics hotline, management planned actions and the
results of enquiries.

«  Agrees the scope of the auditor’s work and their fees.

«  Monitors the performance of the internal audit
function.

The committee holds at least three meetings in any
particular year. The committee has an annual work plan
as approved by the Shareholder to ensure that all relevant
matters are covered by the agendas of the meetings
planned for the year to ensure adequate coverage of the
matters as laid out in the terms of reference.

The invitees to committee meetings include executive
directors, internal and external auditors, the group risk

Jun 2011 Aug 2011 Nov 2011 Feb 2012

]

N
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4/4
4/4
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Nov 2011 Feb 2012

PERSONNEL AND REMUNERATION -— e INTERNAL CONTROL
COMMITTEE

RISK MANAGEMENT

INTERNAL AUDIT

SUSTAINABILITY

CODE OF ETHICS
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6 RISK GOVERNANCE

OVERVIEW

Effective management of risk and opportunity is essential
for the achievement of the company’s objectives,
sustainable shareholder value and the protection of its
reputation. DAe’s approach to risk management entails
early identification of key risks and then eliminating or
reducing the likelihood and impact of risks before they
occur, and dealing effectively with them if they do start
to materialise.

Performance on programmes is directly affected by project
risks, arising from the long-term nature and the complexity
of the programmes, ever-changing technology and other
related risks inherent in the contract environment. This
impacts delivery, cost and financial performance, amongst
other things. The Aerospace industry is highly regulated,
and compliance with laws, regulations and standards are
a primary requisite for doing business in this industry.

DAe is committed to the protection of its human,
property and financial resources, through an effective risk
management process. Risk management is linked to the
group’s strategy, appetite for risk and the achievement of
the group’s business objectives. Risks are continuously

monitored, risk response plans reviewed, appropriate
contingencies are provisioned and this information is
reported through established management control
procedures. DAe’s primary goal is to embed and integrate
risk management with all business processes to ensure
risks and opportunities are identified, assessed, prioritised
and addressed. Stewardship for assets, safe and effective
operations, as well as good governance are imperative in
order to achieve the company’s objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Risk management is continuously reviewed by
management and reported to the Executive Management
by means of a“Strategic Risk Management”review meeting
and updating of the Top 10 and next 10 company Strategic
risks. The approved Top 10 risks are then uploaded into the
DCO risk register (Bridge).

Within DAe there are anumber of sub-level risk committees
comprising the following areas:

«  Operations (Incorporating Engineering and quality)

«  Finance and Compliance

. T

. HR (Shared Service)

«  Programmes Department

Risk and opportunity identification is initiated during the corporate and business planning process, and continuously
monitored. Sensitivity analysis and budget stress-testing, programme management reviews and monthly budget and

operational effectiveness reviews are conducted

Sub Sub-
committees committee
chairperson and
EMT review and
update Company

Risk Register.

compile Risk
register relevant
to their fields of

responsibility.

Output Output

Consolidated Risk register
for associated disciplines.

Entity Strategic risks register
Top 10 and “Next” 10 risks.

Frequency Frequency
Quarterly Quarterly

Chairperson DAe Board

of Company and Audit & Risk
Committee review
of Risks and trends

Strategic Risk
register updates
DCO Risk register

(Bridge)

Output Output

Updated DCO Risk Register Programme performance

and risk update

Frequency Frequency
Quarterly DAe Board meetings
Audit & Risk committee

The outputs from these committees are used as inputs for
the Strategic Risk Register compilation. The responsibility
for risk identification, assessment, mitigation, reporting
and monitoring rests with line management. Reporting
within the company is structured so that key issues are
escalated through executive management, the audit
and risk committees and ultimately to the board and
the Shareholder. As with any system of internal control,
the policies and processes that are mandated in the
operational framework are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

FRAUD PREVENTION AND
ANTI-CORRUPTION

Denel has a whistle-blowing system as part of the fraud
prevention plan. Through this mechanism, fraudulent
activities and other cases of unethical behaviour may
be reported in a secure and confidential manner. The
effectiveness of usage of the ethics hotline was also
assessed and communication was increased to heighten
awareness of this mechanism.

The confidential ethics hotline number 0800 20 4880,
is independently operated and all stakeholders are
encouraged to use it.
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ETHICS

DAe has an employee ethics policy which underpins
DAe's value of integrity and codifies principles of
good governance contained in various policies of the
organisation to create an ethical business environment.
The policy commits the company to sound business
practices and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and requires directors and senior managers to
declare their interests.

DAe prevents its employees from receiving or offering
gifts that could unduly, directly or indirectly, influence
their decision-making and requires them to declare gifts
received in the gift register.

Directors and senior management declared their interests
and these were reported at the audit and risk committees
of the various entities.

COMPLIANCE

DAe’s compliance programme includes the continuous
identification and monitoring of laws and other relevant
aspects of regulation that impact DAe’s business. The
objective of the programme is to prevent breaches as far
as practicable, detect breaches and take corrective action.

Health, safety, environmental and quality management
as well as OEM accreditation systems are implemented as
part of the compliance programme.
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7 ECONOMIC IMPACTS

The overall impact of DAe or its closure were analysed
for pure economic impact as well as its technological-
and innovation impact and their effects on national
development goals and industrial policy.

ECONOMIC IMPACT
JOBS, CONSUMER INCOME AND TAXES

For the purposes of this evaluation the economic impact
were defined as the jobs created, employee income paid,
supply chain spend on local suppliers, taxes paid and
export revenue earned by DAe.

Analysis is based on documented economic multipliers
for aerospace in the United States and more detail on the

methodology and references used are presented below.

RESULTS ARE SHOWN IN TABLE 1 BELOW:

om0

ACTUAL
Total SA economy Jobs: 3218
Direct 825
Indirect 25 1238
Induced 3.9 1155
Total Salaries (Rm): 764
Direct 196
Indirect 25 294
Induced 3.9 274
Local Supplier spend, (Rm) 702
Direct 180
Indirect 25 270
Induced 3.9 252
Taxes: PAYE + VAT, (Rm) 183
Direct 47
Indirect 25 70
Induced 3.9 66

Table 1- Total DAe economic impact based on US multipliers
for aerospace

It should be noted that according to the World Economic
Forum 2009, the impact of knowledge intensive industries
on GDP growth is higher for developing economies
compared to developed economies, so that the industry
multiplier for a developing country economy is likely to be
higher than those presented for United States. This means
that the economic multipliers referred to in Table 1 may be
considered as conservative for South Africa.

Above results were then also compared with one local
case study (T. Phele, S. Roberts and G. Saggers, School
of Economic and Business sciences, University of the
Witwatersrand, 2004) conducted to specifically analyse
the potential impact of Airbus A400M business on
the South African economy. This study used a social
accounting matrix (SAM) approach and calculated a total
economic multiplier effect of 6.9 . Results of the study are
summarised in Table 2

INCREASE IN INCREASE IN
VALUE-ADDED  EMPLOYMENT

Direct R320 million 401
Indirect R539 million 2767
Total R859 million 3168

Table 2 — Total economic impact of A400M on SA economy
(T Phele et al, 2004)

EXPORTS

Average export revenue for DAe for the period April 2008
to current is approximately R200 million per annum. This
period excludes the ramp-up phase of Airbus A400M
production which is estimated to be an additional R200
million per annum.

TECHNOLOGY AND INNOVATION
IMPACTS ON NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
GOALS

Several policy frameworks and action plans have been
launched by Government in recent years to express their
strategy and industrial policies to convert the South
African economy from a predominantly resource &
services based economy to a so called ‘knowledge-based’
economy able to produce sustained economic growth in

.3

order to deal with SA’s socio-economic challenges. These
include but are not limited to:

«  Medium term strategic Framework 2010 -2013

«  National Industrial Policy Framework (NIPF)

« Industrial Policy Action Plan (IPAP2)

«  The’10year Innovation Plan’

METHODOLOGY USED

Due to the ripple effect of economic activity it also consists

of direct, indirect and induced effects, where:

a) Direct impact refers to the jobs and income of the
company

b) Indirect impact occur in related sectors that supply
goods and services to the company

¢) Induced effects are created by the increased consumer
spending based on increased payrolls of both DAe
and its contractors & suppliers.

\nduced

Figure — DAe’s Direct, Indirect and induced effects
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Various economic models exist for evaluation of total
economic impact and calculation of economic multipliers.
The DAe analysis was based on the “regional input-output
analysis”approach as various well documented United States
case studies for Aerospace have calculated and documented
economic multipliers for the aerospace industry. This model
takes the direct values of the company’s jobs, payroll and
supplier spend, taxes etc. and calculate additional indirect
and induced effects by multiplying this with economic
multipliers obtained using RIMS and IMPLAN software.

Some of the case studies consulted from which the economic

multipliers were adopted are:

a) Boeing Company’s Economic impact in Arizona - W. P.
Carey School of Business, Arizona State University

b) Economic impact of Aerospace on State of Arizona - L.
William Seidman Research Institute, W. P. Carey School of
Business, Arizona State University

c) Kansas Aerospace Industry - Center for Economic
Development and Business Research , W. Frank Barton
School of Business, Wichita State University

The ‘South African Aerospace Sector Development Plan
(2010 Draft) - C Groesbeeck & B Gerrits' also contains further
information in this regard.

"
> 4
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8 SOURCING AND SUPPLY: PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT

OVERVIEW

PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT - THE STATUS IS AS FOLLOWS

PREFERENTIAL WEIGHTING  TARGET & ACTUAL % ACTUAL % OF SCORE  DENEL
PROCUREMENT POINTS SCORE ACHIEVED TARGET

20.00 16.06 10.00

L @ L G L 9
B-BEEE Procurement Spend - All Suppliers

A

= &
B-BEEE Procurement Spend - QSE or EME g g Local Suppliers spend
. g g 01 April 2011 to
B-BEEE Procurement Spend - Black Owned E’ § 30 March 2012
(oL

R145211514.94

A

B-BEEE Procurement Spend - Black Women Owned
A
B-BEEE Spend Non B-BEEE Spend
R133310100.44 R11901414.50
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9 HUMAN RESOURCES AND
TRANSFORMATION

EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE
WORKPLACE PROFILE

JOB CATEGORIES

TOTAL WORKFORCE 731 453 381%*
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THE TABLE BELOW ILLUSTRATES APPOINTMENTS BY RACE AND GENDER:

CATEGORY 2012 2011 2010

NUMBER % NUMBER % NUMBER %
Black Male* 6 25 5 20.8 13 394
Black Female* 4 16.7 1 4.2 8 24.2
White Male *12 50 16 66.7 9 27.3
White Female 2 8.3 2 8.3 3 9.1
TOTAL 24 100.0 24 100.0 33 100.0

* Reemployment of retrenched employees.

THE TABLE BELOW ILLUSTRATES TERMINATIONS BY RACE AND GENDER:

MARCH-12 2011 2010
NUMBER % NUMBER % NUMBER %
Black Male* 53 524 100 33.2 57 385
Black Female* 15 14.9 40 13.3 21 14.2
White Male 31 30.7 141 46.8 63 42.6
White Female 2 2.0 20 6.6 7 4.7
TOTAL 101 100.0 301 100.0 148 100.0

*Black refers to African, Coloured and Indian

REMUNERATION, REWARD AND
RECOGNITION

Denel has a group-wide performance management and
reward system. This system incorporates a variable pay
portion that is based on achievement of performance
targets by employees and DAe’s overall performance. One
of the objectives of the variable pay system is to encourage
profitability and sustainability. Another objective was to
reduce the high employee turnover caused by the lower
than market salaries. Overall employee turnover has come
down from 9.9% in 2010 to 6.6% currently. The company’s
target attrition rate ranges from 5% - 8% per year.

The DAe Board considers the latest economic indicators
and affordability when providing the annual salary

increase mandate. Wage negotiations take place at a plant
level and are based on a company specific mandate.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

. MEDICAL AID

The compulsory company medical aid is Discovery Health.
The terms of service require employees to be a member of
medical aid. The necessary deductions from employees’
salaries are made and paid over to the medical scheme.

. DENEL RETIREMENT FUND

Denel has in place a retirement fund for all employees.
The fund is based on a defined contribution model

where employees are not guaranteed a specific pay-out
at the time of retirement since it is dependent on the
performance of investment mechanisms used. The Denel
retirement fund is administered by Alexander Forbes.

POSITIVE EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

DAe’s relationship with labour unions remains stable and
positive, notwithstanding, the retrenchments that took
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place during the year under review. All consultations and
negotiations are completed timeously and in a positive
spirit. Recognition agreements with the three labour
unions are in place. The three unions recognised by DAe
are Solidarity, NUMSA and UASA. Another objective was to
reduce high employee turnover by making remuneration
more attractive / market related.

A

PROFILE OF UNIONS REPRESENTED IN DAe: x
UNION 2012 2011 2010
NUMBER % NUMBER % NUMBER %

Solidarity 110 28.9 133 294 205 28.0
Numsa 66 17.3 75 16.6 148 20.2
UASA 66 17.3 67 14.8 83 114
Total 242 63.5 275 60.7 436 59.6
TOTAL WORKFORCE 381 453 731

LIVING OUR VALUES

DAe has a set of corporate values aimed at prescribing
desired behaviours required in the workplace. DAe
encourages these behaviours by regularly communicating
them and by rewarding positive behaviours.

EMPLOYEE WELLBEING

. WELLNESS DAYS

DAe participates in the Cancer and Shavathon days in
support of people living with cancer. Road shows and
interactive workshops are held dealing with personal
finance management as part of the wellness drive. Wellness
days are held and employees have the opportunity to check
their blood pressure, cholesterol, sugar diabetes, etc.

There is an executive wellness programme and its intention
is to ensure that all executives go through extensive tests
and the aggregated results are shared with the company as
part of risk management.

. PROGRAMMES IN SUPPORT OF
HIV/AIDS AWARENESS

HIV/AIDS awareness sessions are held regularly. Posters
and banners are displayed during the national HIV/AIDS
awareness week and condoms are made available in the
ablution facilities. DAe, from time to time, invites industrial
theatre artists to present shows that raise awareness of HIV/
AIDS. These shows were well received by employees.

DEVELOPING SKILLS

. EMPLOYEE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT
INITIATIVES

DAe understands the intrinsic link between skills
development and long term business sustainability. To a
large extent this industry requires unique technical skills
that are largely not available in the market.

DAe’s objective is to develop every employee to their full
potential and encourages all employees to take learning
and development as a personal responsibility. This way,
we will impact positively on the development of skills for
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SOURCING AND SUPPLY

TRAINING Employee satisfaction:
LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT Opportunities:
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME
Values:

Succession Planning:

ARTISAN TRAINING

Mentorship:

Retention:

MONITORING OF TRANSFORMATION
PERFORMANCE DAe’S PERFORMANCE ON B-BBEE

SUCCESSION PLANNING TRANSFORMATION
OVERVIEW

EMPLOYEE STUDY BURSARIES

Performance management:

Information and participation:
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IMPROVING ORGANISATIONAL 10 SOCIO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT C. EMPOWERING THOSE WITH
CLIMATE DISABILITIES AND FROM PREVIOUSLY
DISADVANTAGED BACKGROUNDS:

Shaveathons and Casual Day:

RATING SCORE TRANSFORMATION  DESCRIPTION DAe’s “Make ‘em Fly” CSI Campaign:
STATUS

A. SUPPORTING GOVERNMENT
THROUGH SPONSORSHIPS

Chief of Air Force Coffee Table book:

SAAF Benevolent fund:

D. EMPOWERING WOMEN:
B. ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT

DAe believes in acknowledging and empowering
women:

Women'’s day:

Empowered Women at DAe:
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Secretaries Day:

Take a girl child to work:

E. DAE EMBRACES DIVERSITY:

DAe on Diversity: SOUTH AFRICA: THE RAINBOW

NATION: Job shadowing: H. NATIONAL SOCIO-ECONOMIC
INITIATIVES
Mentorship programmes: Nelson Mandela Day:

Ispani TV Series:

Heritage Day:

Airshow career days:

World HIV/AIDS Day:

G. EDUCATION INITIATIVES AND
PROGRAMMES

F. EMPLOYEE WELLNESS/ Kids Haven Youth Development:
SPONSORSHIP/COMPETITIONS-

Bokke Fridays, Soccer Fridays:
CHARITY BEGINS AT HOME

Cancer month:
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11 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND
SAFETY

OVERVIEW

DAe strives to comply with all statutory requirements as
contemplated in the Occupational Health and Safety Act 85
of 1993.

Our SHE policy details a program that ensures that all
statutory requirements are complied with.

The objective is to provide and maintain a high standard of
safety in our environment to ensure that our employees and
clients are adequately protected from injuries and diseases.

We aim to promote a proactive and safe culture through
awareness training, communication and management
commitment at all levels.

Compliance audits are conducted by external approved
inspection authorities to ensure adherence to legal
requirements.

Occupational health and Safety Governance Structures:
Occupational Health and Safety Policy.
DAe had updated its Safety policy in March 2010. Policy
statement is conspicuously displayed in all facilities.
Occupational Health and Safety Committees.
There are six committees comprising of SHE
representatives and Management representation.
Ten meetings were held by various committees in the
current year.

The target was marginally exceeded as a result of five

Disabling Injuries that were reported. These injuries can
be attributed to 3 apprentices who were not familiar with
the operations of the machines. The apprentices have
since been trained on safe operations of the machines.

Summary of the injuries and corrective action taken

An operator was injured whilst removing a mould
from the Autoclaves. A trolley ran over her foot as a
result of a damaged floor. The floor has since been
fixed.

A tool fell on the apprentice’s finger whilst removing it
from the machine spindle. Apprentice was trained on
safe operations of the machines.

Operator slipped off duck board, fell on the ground
and was cut by the shavings on the thumb. Duck
board has since been replaced with a rubber mat.

An Apprentice was injured when a fixture fell on his
foot whilst assisting an operator to unclamp it.

An apprentice was injured whilst operating a milling
machine, caused by incorrect operation of the
machine. Apprentice was trained on safe operations
of the machines.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND TARGETS

BUSINESS GOALS AND OBJECTIVES LOSS TIME INJURY FREQUENCY RATE

ENTITY

DAe To provide and maintain a safe working Actual 2011 Target 2012 Actual 2010
environment in compliance with the legal 1.02 <1 0.77

requirements and to maintain LTIFR below 1.

KPI

Total man-hours worked

No. of Lost time due to injuries
(One shift or more absent)

No. of reportable injuries
(Section .OHSACct)

No. of reportable
diseases(Section OHSAct)

No. of fatalities

No. of occupational health and
safety incidents

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH PROGRAMME

ACTUAL

CURRENT YEAR
817.074
5

IS PROVIDED IN THE TABLE BELOW.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH
PROGRAMME

Pre-employment and exit medical
examinations

Periodic medical examinations
Biological monitoring
Audiometric (hearing) tests

Hygiene surveys

NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES
ATTENDED

150

208
104
95
01

PRIOR YEAR
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY STATISTICS

TARGETS

CURRENT YEAR

1167.944 829.800

3

PRIOR YEAR

1168.344
2

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

TRAINING AND AWARENESS

TRAINING TYPED OFFERED

Health and safety induction
contractors

Hazardous chemical substances
Safety representatives
Legal training for supervisors

Fire fighters

Crane and forklift operators

NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES
TRAINED FOR
DAe

110

23

32
47
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12 ENVIRONMENTAL
RESPONSIBILITY

OVERVIEW

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

EMPLOYEE TRAINING AND AWARENESS

WASTE PRACTICES AND RECYCLING
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A ——— WEIGHT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS OF
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
LEGISLATION

ENERGY AND WATER USAGE

ENVIRONMENTAL EXPENDITURES

ITEM COST
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5. ANNUAL
FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

1. REPORT OF THE AUDIT
& RISK COMMITTEE

The audit and risk committee reports
that it has adopted appropriate formal
terms of reference as its audit and risk
committee charter and has discharged its
responsibilities as contained therein.

In the conduct of its duties, the committee
has, inter alia, reviewed:

« The effectiveness of internal
controls.

« The risk areas of the company’s
operations covered in the scope of
internal and external audits.

-« The adequacy, reliability and
accuracy of financial information
provided by management.

« Accounting and audit concerns
identified through internal and
external audits.

« The company’s compliance with
legal and regulatory provisions.

« The effectiveness of the internal
audit function.

«  The activities of the internal audit
function, including its annual audit
plan, coordination with the external

auditors, the reports of significant
investigations and the responses
of management to  specific
recommendations.

« The independence and objectivity
of the external auditors.

The committee is of the opinion that the
internal accounting controls are adequate
to ensure that the financial records may
be relied upon for preparing the annual
financial statements, and accountability
for assets and liabilities is maintained.
This opinion is based on the information
and explanations given by management
regarding various processes and initiatives
aimed at improving the internal control
environment and the integrity of
information, discussions with internal
audit, as well as the independent external
auditors on the results of their audits.

A
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2. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DENEL AEROSTRUCTURES SOC
LTD FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2012

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
INTRODUCTION

OPINION
ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY'S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

OTHER REPORTS REQUIRED BY THE
COMPANIES ACT

FIKNLE MHLONTLO
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are material inconsistencies between these reports and
the audited financial statements. These reports are the
responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on
reading these reports we have not identified material
inconsistencies between these reports and the audited
financial statements. However, we have not audited these
reports and accordingly do not express an opinion on
these reports.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

PAA REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued
in terms thereof, we report the following findings relevant
to performance against predetermined objectives,
compliance with laws and regulations and internal control,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion.

PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The performance against predetermined objectives has
been included and consolidated with the rest of the
Denel SOC Ltd group and consequently our procedures
were conducted at Denel SOC Ltd, the company’s holding
company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

We performed procedures to obtain evidence that the
entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations
regarding financial matters, financial management and
other related matters.

We did not identify any instances of material non-
compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws
and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in
terms of the PAA.

INTERNAL CONTROL

We considered internal control relevant to our audit
of the financial statements, shareholder compact key
performance indicators and compliance with laws and
regulations. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we considered sufficiently significant
for inclusion in this report.

gﬂné‘ € ‘fbuv‘(k

DIRECTOR — CHERYL-JANE KUJENGA

Ernst & Young Inc.

Registered Auditor

Chartered Accountant (SA)

Wanderers Office Park, 52 Corlett Drive, lllovo
Johannesburg

28 September 2012

3. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
AND APPROVAL

The board of directors is pleased to present its report and the
audited annual financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2012.

The directors are responsible for the integrity and fair
presentation of the annual financial statements of Denel
Aerostructures SOC Ltd. The annual financial statements
presented on pages 74 to 129 have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, the South African Companies Act No. 71 of 2008
('as amended) and the Public Finance Management Act No.
1 of 1999. These annual financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with appropriate accounting policies
and include amounts based on judgements and estimates
made by management. The directors have supervised the
preparation of information included in the annual report and
are responsible for both its accuracy and consistency.

The directors are satisfied that at the time of approving
the annual financial statements it is appropriate to use the
going concern basis in preparing these financial statements.

DENEL AEROSTRUCTURES | 79

In arriving at this conclusion, the directors considered the
cash position at 31 March 2012, the cash requirements
for at least twelve months from that date, the available
financial guarantee from Denel SOC Ltd and the announced
recapitalisation of the Company by National Treasury. The
going concern is discussed in more detail in page 82 of this
report.

The external auditors are responsible for independently
auditing and reporting on the annual financial statements.
The report of the independent auditors appears on page 77.

The directors are of the opinion that the annual financial
statements fairly present the financial position of Denel
Aerostructures SOC Ltd and the results of its operations and
cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2012.

The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2012, set out on pages 74 to 129, have been prepared under
the supervision of Ms C Slabbert CA/SA and were approved
by the board of directors on 28 September 2012 in terms of
the Companies Act and the Public Finance Management Act
and is signed on their behalf by:

= i
DR G C CRUYWAGEN
Chairman of the Board

MR | DOCKRAT
Chief Executive Officer
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4. CERTIFICATE BY COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary certifies that the company (Reg. N0.2006/028012/30) has lodged with the Companies and

intellectual Property Commission (from 1 May 2011) all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of the

Companies Act, No.71 OF 2008 and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

MS V RAVJEE
Company Secretary

5. DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FINANCIAL REVIEW:

The financial results for the year under review are presented and discussed below:

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)

Other income

Other operating expenses
Profit/(loss) before interest and tax

Net Interest

2012 2011

R R
260,143,903 281,027,479
(220,753,459) (389,904,740)
39,390,444 (108,877,261)
11,066,917 36,910,663
(124,527,816) (151,307,967)
(74,070,455) (223,274,565)
(4,401,498) (13,980,632)

LOSS FORTHE YEAR

(78,471,953) (237,255,197)

The company is showing steady signs of improvement
in the financial performance with a reduced loss of R78
million compared to prior year of R237 million. This can
largely be attributed to the following:

Turnover for the year under review was R69 million
more than the budgeted turnover of R191 million.
This has positively contributed to the improved net
loss position for the current year. The increased sales
are mainly due to increased non recurring costs
incurred on the Airbus programme than what was
budgeted for; roll over production on the Agusta
Programme from the previous year-end and earlier

production ramp-up for the completion of the Gripen
work packages.

The Company incurred a gross profit for March
2012 of R39 million. Although it is a commendable
improvement from the previous vyears, the
contribution thereof is not sufficient to cover the
operating expenses base line. Improvement in
contributions to operating expenses will progress
going forward with an increased production load due
to the ramp-up on the Airbus contract.

Other Income of R11 million was mainly due to foreign
exchange gains and the sale of obsolete stock.
Included in the other operating expenses is a reversal

of impairment for a CMS Router. This machine was
impaired in 2009 and due to work orders loaded to
the machine for current production and the future,
the impairment was reversed with a net positive
impact of R24 million.

A very good improvement in interest costs is evident
in the financial results of the current year in relation
to the two previous years. Interest costs incurred for
the current year is 68% less than the previous year.
This is due to good working capital management by
reducing the cash requirements and managing cash
flow in order to reduce interest cost exposure.

DAe remains in a turnaround phase and due to the
historic structural misalignment between its revenue and
cost bases, it will continue to post losses in the short to
medium term before achieving breakeven in 2016/17.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS:

The contracts discussed below had a significant impact on
the reported financial results, or will continue to impact
the company’s performance:

AIRBUS A400M

DAeiscontractedforthedesign,development, manufacture,
supply and supporting activities of the Airbus A400M Wing-
to-Fuselage Fairing (WFF) and Top Shells (TS) structural
components. The WFF is an essential part of the aircraft that
provides protection against lightning strikes, hail damage
and bird strikes to the sensitive equipment under the
centre wing portion. The WFF is made up of 86 composite
panels and doors and some 1 100 metallic sub-structural
parts and is designed for ease of systems installation and
maintenance. The TS is made up of more than 1 100 parts
consisting of a large machined skin, engineered out of an
aluminium alloy. Each aircraft is fitted with two top shells
positioned in front of and behind the wings where it is
joined to the fuselage. Over a thousand system brackets
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support the vital electric and electronic wiring, hot air and
heat exchange piping and include the aircraft’s life-rafts.

Since contract signature in early 2005, DAe has designed
and manufactured 12 WFF and 13 TS ship sets. The first
production models for TS and WFF were delivered in
December 2010 and November 2011 respectively. The first
production aircraft MSNOO7 is to be delivered to the French
Air force in December 2012. The deliveries will continue
until MSN198 in October 2020. The contract provides for
174 ship sets. DAe is currently gearing up for early ramp-up
which will increase production of the WFF and TS to eight
in 2012/13, 16 in 2013/14 and 24 in 2014/15. Thereafter the
rate of two ship sets per month will be maintained during
serial production phase.

During 2010 management reviewed the profitability of the
WFF and TS programmes and concluded that the recurring
price on both contracts were not viable. Management
further highlighted key terms and conditions of the
contracts which were viewed as onerous. In an attempt to
reduce the negative impact of the DAe loss making position
on Denel, various alternatives were investigated to reduce
the future funding requirements. These included engaging
with Airbus to renegotiate the contracts.

The contract was renegotiated with Airbus resulting in
price increases and reduced penalties. Included in the
negotiation commitments was the reinstatement of a
previously cancelled A400M work package to DAe. As a
result of the price uplift, a financial breakeven position will
be reached in 2016/17. Final amendments of the contracts
will be concluded in the 2012/13 year

The strategy going forward is to scale capabilities to A400M
requirements and to simultaneously secure new orders
aligned to such A400M technologies & capabilities. This will
aid revenue for DAe during the turnaround of the company
and to mitigate production risks.
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IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS:

Impairment tests to assess the recoverability of the plant
and equipment were performed due to the continuous
losses being incurred, negative cash flows and low order
coverage. The impairment testing involved making use
of an independent plant and equipment valuer, as well
as making significant judgments and estimations. The
relevant details are disclosed in the accounting policies
(Impairment of property, plant and equipment) of the
annual financial statements.

The impairment of assets test revealed that no further
impairment provisions were necessary as at year-end. A
CMS Router machine that was impaired in 2009 has been
reinstated to the value of R24 million and is included in the
annual financial statements.

FUNDING:

During the current financial year Denel SOC Ltd converted
shareholders loans advanced to DAe of R167 million from
interest bearing to non-interest bearing borrowings,
thereby increasing non- interest bearing borrowings to
R536 million (before equity split) during the current financial
year. Interest bearing borrowings decreased to R65 million
(2011:R167 million). The interest bearing borrowings relate
to the overdraft facility utilised during the current financial
year. Repayment of the shareholder loans, both interest
bearing and non-interest bearing borrowings, have been
deferred until DAe is in a positive net equity position.

Due to the fact that the Denel loan was structured as
being interest free and subordinated to the benefit of
other creditors, IFRS requires that the company make an
assessment to determine the fair value of the loan based on
the present obligation payable as at 31 March 2012. Current
forecasts indicate that the repayment of the loan is unlikely
and the fair value differential of R528 million was classified
as equity.

A long term loan owing to SAAB AB to the value of R101
million was outstanding at year-end. The loan originated
when SAAB AB was a minority shareholder of the company
and provided funding to the company via a shareholders
loan. SAAB AB exited their shareholding by exercising their
put option on 31 March 2011.

Repayment of the SAAB AB loan is currently under
negotiation. The original re-payment terms, in terms of the
agreement were 5 years from inception of the agreement
(2009).

DENEL AEROSTRUCTURES SOCLTD
GOING CONCERN:

DAe has been in financial and operational difficulty since its
inception. Although the Turnaround Plan implemented by
management is starting to reflect in various improvements;
the company is still loss making and has a negative equity
position of R487 million (when considered before the IFRS
adjustment related to the shareholders loan).

The matters discussed in the preceding paragraphs indicate
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. However the
annualfinancial statements for the yearended 31 March 2012
have been prepared on a going concern basis. In assessing
the appropriateness of the going concern assumption, all
available information, which is at least but not limited to
twelve months from the end of the reporting period, is taken
into account.

The directors, in evaluating the appropriateness of the going
concern assumptions used in the preparation of the annual
financial statements, took the above stated risks into account,
the cash requirements for 12 months from reporting date,
the solvency, and cash position at year-end and available
borrowing facilities. In particular, the directors considered
the matters summarised below:

«  The effect of the renegotiations of the Airbus contract,
specifically with regard to the new recurring prices and
revised ramp up schedule. The resultant impact is that
DAe is now expected to break even in 2016/17.

The financial guarantee letter provided by Denel SOC
Ltd as the company’s shareholder. This letter provides a
broad form of financial guarantee whereby Denel states
that it will ensure that DAe will be put in a position via
funding or other support to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The guarantee also provides for the
subordination of the shareholder loans to the benefit of
other creditors. Future funding of the company will be
provided by Denel via the financial guarantee through
the overdraft account with Denel Treasury Department.
The solvency and liquidity position of the company

as at 31 March 2012. A recapitalisation of R700 Million
for DAe has been announced by the Finance Minister
in his budget speech in February 2012. This has created
confidence in the market, in general, and the aerospace
industry, in particular, that Government has shown
commitment to the funding and sustainability of the
company until breakeven. The recapitalisation will
improve the company’s cash flow and solvency position.
The forecasted shareholder’s equity for the 2013 financial
year remains positive.

«  The cash flow forecast incorporating the cash on hand
at year -end, the cash receivable from the R700m
recapitalisation and the short-term borrowings, which
are expected to enable the company to have a positive
cash position at 31 March 2013.

The Directors of the company are comfortable that DAe has
sufficient cover for at least twelve months since balance sheet
date forits liquidity needs due to the cash requirements being
catered for via the financial guarantee given by the parent
company and the further planned restructuring activities to
reduce cash requirements in the operational activities.

Based on the above assessment the directors are confident
that the necessary steps have been taken to ensure that the
company is a going concern for at least twelve months from
balance sheet date.

The ability of the company to continue as a going concern in
the long term is dependent on:

«  Continued financial support from the Shareholder.
Recapitalisation by National Treasury as announced by
the Minister of Finance.

«  Continued successes to be achieved in the restructuring
activities for the year ahead.

Should the matters referred to above be unable to address
the profitability and liquidity matters, the company may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

DENEL AEROSTRUCTURES SOCLTD
SHARE CAPITAL

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd is a wholly owned company of
Denel SOC Ltd.
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The authority toissue shares vestin the shareholder. Directors
do not have the authority to issue shares on behalf of the
company. There have been no changes in the authorised
or issued share capital of the company for the financial year
under review.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends are recommended for payment for the 2012
financial year (2011: Rnil).

COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ending 31
March 2012 comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

AUDITORS

The auditors for the year under review were appointed
by Denel SOC Ltd and were Ernst & Young Inc.,, with
SizweNtsalubaGobodo as subcontracted auditors. The
statutory auditors for the forthcoming year were confirmed
at the AGM of the Shareholder held on for 19 July 2012.

DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

The company secretary role is fulfilled by Ms Vaneesha
Ravjee that is a Qualified Admitted Attorney of the High
Court of South Africa (TPD).
The address of the registered office of the company and
company secretary is:

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd

POBox 11

Kempton Park

1620

Details of the Directors of the Company are reported on
page 14 of the annual report.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

In order to identify events after the reporting period, all
material matters affecting the Company between the
approval of the Annual financial statements and the

publication of this report were taken into account. No matters
arose between 31 March 2012 and 28 September. 2012.

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

=
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6. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 7.
AT 31 MARCH 2012

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

RS 2012 2011
NOTES R R
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 120,047,987 101,008,314 2012 2011
Property, plant and equipment 8 120,047,987 101,008,314 NOTES R R
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
CURRENT ASSETS 211,374,352 242,860,280 urnover ? 260,143,903 281,027,479
Inventories 10 55,583,471 94 468,105 Cost of sales 3 (220,753,459) (389,904,740)
Trade and other receivables 11 155,783,881 148,001,741
Other financial assets 12.1 . 383,434 GROSS PROFIT 39,390,444 (108,877,261)
Cash and short-term deposits 13 7,000 7,000 Other income 4 11,066,917 36,910,663
Assets classified as held for sale 9 1,100,000 7,329,602 Other operating expenses 3 (124,527,816) (151,307,967)
TOTAL ASSETS 332,522,339 351,198,196
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES OPERATING LOSS (74,070,455) (223,274,565)
EQUITY Finance costs 6.1 (4,410,429) (13,982,554)
Issued capital 14 400 400 Finance income 6.2 8,931 1,922
Share premium 14 789,103,199 789,103,199
Other reserves - - PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (78,471,953) (237,255,197)
Accumulated loss (1,276,132,438) (1,197,660,485) Loss for the year from continuing operations (78,471,953) (237,255,197)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent (487,028,839) (408,556,886) Discontinued operations - -
Equity Portion of Shareholders loan 15 528,013,800 346,598,172
TOTAL EQUITY 40,984,961 (61,958,714) LOSS FOR THE YEAR (78,471,953) (237,255,197)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 111,706,527 134,564,808 Other comprehensive income net of tax - -
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 16 109,086,482 123,127,561 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR (78,471,953) (237,255,197)
Advance payments received 17 = = THE YEAR
Provisions 18.1 2,620,045 11,437,247
CURRENT LIABILITIES 179,830,851 278,592,102
Trade and other payables 19 49,426,430 31,269,225
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 16 65,513,706 167,389,349
Other financial liabilities 12.2 2,659,830 7,644,151
Advance payments received 17 26,605,362 31,584,367 ﬁ
Provisions 18.2 35,625,523 40,705,010
TOTAL LIABILITIES 291,537,378 413,156,910
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 332,522,339 351,198,196
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8. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

NOTES ISSUED SHARE ACCULMULATED TOTAL
CAPITAL PREMIUM LOSS
BALANCE AT 1 APRIL 2011
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2012
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2012 400 789,103,199 (1,276,132,438) (487,028,839)
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9. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS AS AT 31 MARCH 2012
2012 2011
NOTES R R
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 13 7,000 7,000
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10. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd is a company incorporated and domiciled in South Africa. The annual financial statements
are presented in South African Rand (Rand), which is also the company’s functional and reporting currency and all values
are rounded to the nearest Rand.

1.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The annual financial statements are prepared on the historic cost basis, with the exception of derivative financial instruments,
financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss, and investment properties, which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the annual financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the following year are discussed in note 1.2.
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

The following amended IFRS and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations became
effective during the year:

STANDARD/ TITLE EFFECTIVE DATE IMPACT AND APPLICATION

INTERPRETATION

IAS 19 Employee Benefits 1 January 2013 (early No impact financial results or
(Amendment) adopted) position nor on disclosure

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the 1 January 2013 (early Not relevant.

Production Phase ofa  adopted)
Surface Mine

The adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or position or on
any additional disclosure, as no events occurred that these standards and interpretations relate to.

1.2 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the company’s accounting
policies, the following judgements and estimates have
been made, which are considered to have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
company'’s annual financial statements:

REVENUE, CONTRACT RISKS AND
ONEROUS CONTRACTS

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd accounts for a group of
contracts, whether with a single customer or several
customers as a single construction contract when the
contracts are so closely inter-related that they are, in effect,
part of a single project with an overall profit margin.

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd uses the percentage of
completion method in accounting for its contract revenue.
The stage of completion is determined based on the costs
incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated cost of
each contract.

Contract revenue comprises of the initial amount of revenue
agreed in the contract, contract variation orders (CVOs) and
claims and incentive payments.

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd evaluate cost to completion

on all contracts to determine the extent of revenue to be

recognised, as well as to assess the profitability of a contract.

In the instance where costs exceed expected revenue, a

provision for contract losses is raised. In determining the

cost to completion, the following assumptions are used:

«  Labour hours are estimated based on a review of the
outstanding functionalities and the experience of the
project managers in conducting similar processes, as
well as their understanding of the requirements. In
cases where the process requires new and unique
work, anticipated hours are used.

«  The average labour rates are determined from known
company labour rates based on normal capacity
(determined during the annual budget process) for
specialists and specific functional areas, depending on
the mix of various processes and work content.

«  Manufacturing overheads are allocated pro rata
according to IAS 11 Construction Contracts. Indirect
costs are not specifically allocated to a product or an
activity.
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«  Material costs are based on the engineering or
production bills of material together with the latest
material prices available. This also includes the
purchasing price, import and purchasing levies,
freight and handling costs and all direct procurement
costs, less discounts and subsidies on purchases.

« Inflation and rates of exchange adjustments are made
based on information supplied by reputable banks.

«  Technical obsolescence on aircraft and missile
contracts where rapidly changing technology may
result in a re-engineering requirement on these
systems.

Management made significant judgements on the
following (for more detail discussion refer to the directors
report):

AIRBUS A400M CONTRACT

The contract costs to completion on the A400M contract
have been calculated based on management’s best
estimates taking into account the technical and industrial
uncertainties attached to the programme. These include
guantities to be delivered on specific dates, escalations
and a delay of 4 years. No provision has been made for
contract losses on the contract as these are offset by the
indemnity agreement signed by the government.

SHAREHOLDER'S LOAN

The following assumptions have been used in determining
the split between the equity and liability components of
the shareholder’s loans:

«  The current business plan of Denel Aerostructures
SOC Ltd only has a 10 year view and it is difficult
to determine when the net equity of Denel
Aerostructures SOC Ltd will be positive again and in
effect when the loans will become payable. Based on
the best estimates, the loan will become payable in
30 years and this was used as the discounting period.

« A discount rate of 9,81% was used as this is the risk
adjusted rate at which Denel SOC Ltd, the parent
company, will be able to get funding.
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IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

Impairment assessments are performed that demonstrate
impairment indicators. The company’s impairment tests
for property, plant and equipment are based on fair value
less cost to sell using the estimated fair value of the assets
less the estimated costs of disposal.

PRODUCT WARRANTIES

Anticipated warranty cost is based on the technical risk
estimations in terms of single opportunity production
contracts, and historical data in terms of repetitive
production type contracts. The estimation is based on
past experience (proven results) and varies per type of
contract. This is expressed, as a percentage of cost of
sales, ranging from nil to 10.0%, and is determined at the
quotation phase and is reviewed on a regular basis.

1.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.3.1 REVENUE RECOGNITION
SALE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

Revenue comprises the invoiced value of goods and
services, net of Value Added Tax, rebates and discounts.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in profit or
loss when significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably.

No revenue is recognised if there are significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration
due, associated costs or the possible return of goods and
continuing management involvement with the goods.

LONG-TERM CONTRACTS

Contract revenue and costs relating to long-term
construction contracts are recognised in profit or loss in
proportion to the stage of completion of the project at
year-end if the outcome of a contract can be estimated
reliably. However, when the outcome of a contract cannot
be reliably measured then revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that is probable of being

recovered, while contract costs are recognised in the period

in which they are incurred. Depending on the nature of the

contract, the stage of completion is determined as follows:

«  For the development of aircraft sub-assemblies where
there is a significant amount of uncertainty, the stage
of completion is based on the extent of achievement of
predetermined milestones within the contract. These
significant uncertainties are only satisfied once client
certification takes place.

« On all other contracts, the stage of completion is
determined with reference to costs incurred to date as
a percentage of total estimated costs.

A group of contracts, whether with a single customer or

with several customers, are treated as a single construction

contract when the contracts are so closely inter-related
such that they are, in effect, part of a single project with an
overall profit margin.

Contract revenue comprises:

a) The initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract;
and

b) Variations in contract work and incentive payments:

i) To the extent that it is probable that they will result in
revenue; and

i) They are capable of being reliably measured.

c¢) A claim is an amount that Denel Aerostructures SOC
Ltd seeks to collect from the customer or another
party as reimbursement for costs not included in the
contract price. The measurement of the amounts of
revenue arising from claims is subject to a high level
of uncertainty and often depends on the outcome of
negotiations. Therefore, claims are included in contract
revenue only when:

i) Negotiations have reached an advanced stage such
that it is probable that the customer will accept the
claim; and

ii) The amount that is probable will be accepted by the
customer and can be measured reliably.

An expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

1.3.2 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR
SALE

A discontinued operation is a component of Denel
Aerostructures SOC Ltd business that has either been

disposed or is classified as held for sale and that represents
a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to its subsequent disposal.

Assets are classified as non-current assets held for sale
if the carrying amount would be recovered principally
through sale and not continuing use. A business entity to
be partially disposed, which remains to be consolidated, is
not classified as held for sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the assets (and all assets and liabilities in
a disposal group) is done in accordance with applicable
IFRSs. Then, on initial classification as held for sale, non-
current assets and disposal groups are recognised at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to its
subsequent disposal.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale
are recognised in profit or loss. Gains, limited to previously
recognised impairment losses and losses on subsequent
measurement, are recognised in profit or loss.

1.3.3 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when Denel Aerostructures SOC
Ltd has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The impact of
the periodic unwinding of the discount is recognised in
profit or loss as finance cost as it occurs.

1.3.4 TAXES

Income tax for the year comprises of current and deferred
tax. Income tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity,
in which case it is recognised in equity.
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Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date and any adjustments relating
to prior years.

Deferred tax is provided in full using the liability method
for temporary differences arising between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not provided for the initial recognition of
goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination, and at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit or loss nor taxable
profit or loss. The amount of deferred tax provided is based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates
that are expected to apply for the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled based on tax rates enacted
or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
taxation benefit will realise.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised on a net
basis for each tax entity.

Secondary Tax on Companies (STC) that arises from the
distribution of dividends is recognised at the same time as
the liability to pay the related dividend.

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the

amount of value added tax (VAT) except:

«  Where the VAT incurred on the purchase of assets or
services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case the VAT is recognised as part of the cost
of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item applicable

+  Receivables and payables that are stated with the
amount of VAT included

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.
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1.3.5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS

LOANS RECEIVABLE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

BORROWINGS

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES

OFFSET

DE-RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL ASSETS
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«  The company retains the contractual right to receive
cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
or

«  The company has transferred its contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the asset and either:

»  Has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset of ownership; or

»  Hasneithertransferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the company has transferred its contractual rights
to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the company’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd could
be required to repay.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

1.3.6 FOREIGN CURRENCIES

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION
CURRENCY

Items included in the financial statements are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the business operates (the functional currency).
The annual financial statements are presented in Rands,
which is the company’s functional and presentation
currency.

RECORDING OF FOREIGN
TRANSACTIONS

All foreign exchange transactions are accounted for at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transactions.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRANSACTIONS

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated to Rand
at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange differences arising on translation are recognised
in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate at the prevailing
date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated to Rand at foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

1.3.7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
includes all costs that are incurred in order to bring the
asset into a location and condition necessary to enable it
to operate as intended by management and includes the
cost of materials, direct labour and the initial estimate,
where applicable, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items of property, plant and equipment and
depreciated separately.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis which,
it is estimated, will reduce the carrying amount of the
assets to their residual values at the end of their useful
lives. Lease improvements on leasehold properties are
depreciated over the period of the lease or the expected
useful life whichever is the shorter period.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

+  Plant 3 to 40 years
+  Machinery and equipment 3 to 60 years
«  Vehicles 5 years

«  Office furniture and accessories 3to 20 years
- Computer equipment 3to5years

The useful lives and the residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are reassessed annually.

SUBSEQUENT EXPENDITURE

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item or part of an
item of property, plant and equipment is capitalised when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
part that is replaced is derecognised in accordance with
the principles set out below. All other costs are recognised
in profit or loss as an expense when incurred.

DE-RECOGNITION

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and

equipment shall be derecognised at the earlier of:

a) The date of disposal; or

b) The date when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal.

Gains and/or losses on de-recognition of items of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss.

SPARE PARTS

Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as
property, plant and equipment when the company
expects to use them during more than one period.
Similarly, if the major spare parts and servicing equipment
can be used only in connection with an item of property,
plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

1.3.8 LEASES

The determination of whether an arrangement is,
or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
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asset or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the underlying asset to the company
are classified as finance leases. Assets acquired in terms
of finance leases are capitalised at the lower of fair value
and the present value of the minimum lease payments
at inception of the lease, and depreciated over the
estimated useful life of the asset. The capital element of
future obligations under the leases is included as a liability
in the statement of financial position. Lease payments
are allocated using the effective interest rate method
to determine the lease finance cost, which is expensed
over the lease period, and the capital repayment, which
reduces the liability to the lessor.

Leases, where the lessor retains the risks and rewards
of ownership of the underlying asset, are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives paid are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease
expense.

The interest expense component of finance lease
payments is recognised in profit or loss using the effective
interest rate method.

1.3.9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets that are acquired separately by the
company are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. Amortisation is charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets. The amortisation period and
amortisation method are reviewed annually and any
change is treated as a change in estimate.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

1.3.10 IMPAIRMENT

REVERSALS OF IMPAIRMENT
FINANCIAL ASSETS

PATENTS

COMPUTER SOFTWARE

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
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1.3.11 INVENTORIES

RAW MATERIALS AND BOUGHT-OUT
COMPONENTS

WORK-IN-PROGRESS, FINISHED
PRODUCTS AND CONTRACTS-IN-
PROGRESS

CONSUMABLE INVENTORIES

1.3.12

1.3.13

1.3.14

ADVANCE PAYMENTS
RECEIVED FROM SALES
CONTRACTS

INSURANCE CONTRACTS

HEDGE ACCOUNTING
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STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS ISSUED THAT ARE NOT
YET EFFECTIVE

1.4

STANDARD OR TITLE ISSUE DATE EFFECTIVE DATE
INTERPRETATION

S
~
a

J

iifiig.y
niag,

¥ [in




IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

IAS 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION - PRESENTATION OF
ITEMS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
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IFRS 7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
DISCLOSURES

IAS 28 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES (AS REVISED IN
2011)

IAS 32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
PRESENTATION
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11. NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 2 4,317,062 2,521,501
Executive directors 4,317,062 2,521,501
2 REVENUE 2012 2011 CONSULTATION FEES 52,351 1,617,641
COSTS OF INVENTORIES RECOGNISED AS AN EXPENSE 152,285,572 147,917,503
R R LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 18,043 37,295
umover 260,143,903 281,027,479 Property, plant and equipment 18,043 37,295
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS'! 48,475,238 21,605,151
STAFF COSTS 160,825,653 180,249,541
: ggE;AQI'I;NSC? LEE(SP QNNSDE?TH = 2012 201 Services costs 120,018,623 151,129,917
Staff and related provisions 21,267,329 11,679,924
R R Medical fund contributions 5,982,701 7,581,105
TOTAL COST OF SALES FROM OPERATIONS 220,753,459 389,904,740 Termination benefits paid 453,098 )
Cost of sales 220,753,459 389,904,740 Pension costs: Defined contribution plan 13,103,902 9,858,595
TOTAL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES FROM 124,527,816 151,307,967 1. The research and development costs are customer funded.
OPERATIONS 2. Detailed remuneration is fully disclosed in note 23 (related parties). Executive directors’ remuneration included is from date
Operating expenses 124,527,816 151,307,967 of appointment as director. The non-executive directors are paid by Denel SOC Ltd.
345,281,275 541,212,707
Cost of sales and other operating expenses are arrived at after taking the following items into account: 4 OTHER OPERATING INCOME 2012 2011
R R
IMPAIRMENT RAISED/(REVERSED) (73,016,092) (29,172,815) Net gains on financial instruments (refer note 5) 3,021,156 30,301,515
Property, plant and equipment (refer note 8) (23,559,970) 3,633,078 Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,729,388 668,823
Impairment Accounted for in FY12 - IFRS5 915,260 - Other 3,316,373 5,940,325
Impairment Raised 521,011 - 11,066,917 36,910,663
Inventories written off(refer note 10) (50,862,097) (32,620,954)
T e e e e e R e (30,296) (184,939) 1. Other is mainly made up of scrap sales, insurance claims, and discount received.
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 1,857,803 2,509,184
Current year 1,600,000 1,892,406
Previous year’s under accrual - 510,778 5 NET GAINS/(LOSSES) ON FINANCIAL 2012 2011
Other 257,803 106,000 INSTRUMENTS
DEPRECIATION (REFER NOTE 8) 13,121,793 14,587,604 R R
Buildings 300,063 144,945
Plant and machinery 12,645,456 14,322,971 Net foreign exchange differences 3,021,156 30,301,515
Vehicles and office furniture 93,107 63,186 Losses on settled transactions (5,005,619) (15,096,602)
Computer equipment 83,167 56,502 Gains on settled transactions 7,163,902 24,154,542
OPERATING EXPENSES FOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - - Losses on fair value adjustments (3,037,273) (19,904,893)
OPERATING LEASE PAYMENTS 16326 130 17621 691 Gains on fair value adjustments 3,900,146 41,148,468
Plant and machinery 741,217 1,212,456 3,021,156 30,301,515
Buildings 13,247,197 14,085,663
ICT Rental contracts 1,163,957 1,163,957
Computer equipment 1,173,759 1,159,615
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6 NET FINANCE COST 2012

6.1 FINANCE COSTS

6.2 FINANCE INCOME
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2011 8 PROPERTY, PLANT  LANDAND CAPITALISED PLANT AND VEHICLES COMPUTER  TOTAL
AND EQUIPMENT BUILDINGS ~ WORKIN ~ MACHINERY ~ AND  EQUIPMENT
R PROGRESS OFFICE
FURNITURE
R R R R R R

NET FINANCE COSTS 4,401,498 13,980,632 CARRYING VALUE AT 31 1,352,345 312,600 117,809,155 314,843 259,043 20,047,986
MARCH
7 TAXATION EXPENSE 2012 2011
R R CARRYING VALUE AT 31 1,352,345 312,600 117,809,155 314,843 259,043 120,047,986
MARCH

NET AVAILABLE CALCULATED TAX LOSSES 1,263,360,937

1,164,306,708

CARRYING VALUE AT 31 1,558,791 165,963 98,609,999 407,950 265,611 101,008,314
MARCH
CARRYING VALUE AT 31 1,558,791 165,963 98,609,999 407,950 265,611 101,008,314

MARCH
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Owing to the continued losses , the property, plant and equipment has been assessed for impairment. IAS 36 Impairment of
assets provides that the recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value in use. The
impairment was based on the fair value less cost to sell for all property, plant and equipment items. Certain property, plant
and equipment were impaired in the recent past due to a lack of orders; there was an impairment reversal with a net effect of
R24m on a CMS router machine

During the 2009 financial year DAe acquired a machine (“CMS Machine and the Vacume Cup Tooling”) for the purposes of
manufacturing WFF and TS Airbus components. DAe has two such CMS machines, with the other one being utilised by the
Composites Department. However, due to specification changes made, the machine could no longer be used for its intended
purpose. This resulted in the piece of equipment being fully impaired in that year.

Over the period since thisimpairment, there has been ongoing effort by the sheetmetal department in order to reindustrialise
the machine. DAe management has now assessed that the reindustrialisation has reached a point whereby the CMS machine
can now be used for the Airbus contract. The machine will also be utilised for cutting composite components when the
A2 facility move is executed. This will result in the other CMS machine being off-line for approximately 6 months. DAe
management made the decision to consider the reversal of impairment of the CMS machine as a direct result of this.

9 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 2012 2011
R R
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,100,000 7,329,602
1,100,000 7,329,602

Denel Aerostructures is in the process of selling the shot peening machine due to the current and projected utilisation .
Denel Aerostructures received an offer of R1 100 000, the shot peening machine was impaired with R915 260 to ensure
the book value agrees with the fair value less cost to sell.
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11 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2012 2011
R R

FINANCIAL ASSETS 150,745,660 146,283,826

Trade receivables 31,259,108 17,762,467
«  Trade receivables: Inter-Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd 755,241 1,770,160

Work performed not yet invoiced 118,382,650 118,175,146
«  Other receivables 348,661 8,576,053
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 5,038,221 1,717,915
Prepayments and advances made 4,989,561 1,693,385
Other receivables 48,660 24,530

155,783,881

148,001,741

Accumulated impairment

Financial assets

189,528

189,528

10 INVENTORIES 2012 2011
R R

INVENTORIES ARE VALUED AT THE LOWER OF COST
AND NET REALISABLE VALUE AND IS CATEGORISED AS
FOLLOWS:
Raw materials and bought-out components 28,543,629 40,224,725
Work in progress 23,282,076 49,994,489
Contracts in progress 2,131,040 2,416,570
Good in Transit in bound 1,626,726 1,832,321

55,583,471 94,468,105
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT 57,817,466 108,679,563

The amount of write-down of inventories recognised as an expense is R152 285 572 (2011: R147 917 503)
which is recognised in cost of sales, this is due to excess stock that was sold.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 day terms. Specific impairments are made for
identified doubtful debts.

Amounts due from customers for contract work relates to the Indemnity claim that is outstanding for payment from the
Department of Public Enterprises. Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd expects to receive the payment of the Indemnity claim

in December 2012.

Prepayments made during the period were for the purchases of inventory and property, plant & equipment.

IMPAIRMENT ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION
INDIVIDUALLY IMPAIRED

Balance at 1 April 189,528 1,185,047
Written off as uncollectible (159,232) (810,580)
Impairment losses reversed (30,296) (184,939)

- 189,528
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12 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 2012 2011 14 ISSUED CAPITAL 2012 2011
LIABILITIES
R R
R R AUTHORISED
121 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
ISSUED
- 383,434
122 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES SHARE PREMIUM 789,103,199 789,103,199
2,659,830 7,644,152
123 ASSET MEASUREMENT AT FAIR VALUE - LEVEL 2
15 EQUITY PORTION OF SHAREHOLDERS 2012 2011
LOAN
R R
528,013,800 346,598,172
13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2012 2011
R R
7,000 7,000
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16 LOANS AND BORROWINGS 2012 2011
UNSECURED LOAN 109,086,482 123,127,561
Unsecured loan from SAAB AB 100,863,333 100,863,333

TheR100863 333 SAAB ABloanis currently under negotiation as SAAB ABis no longer a shareholder of Denel Aerostructures
SOC Ltd. the original re-payment terms in terms of the agreement was 5 years from inception of the agreement.

Unsecured loan from Denel SOC Ltd

Non-interest bearing non-current share holders borrowing

Less: Equity portion of borrowing

8,223,149
536,236,949

(528,013,800)

22,264,228
368,862,400

(346,598,172)
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17 ADVANCE PAYMENTS RECEIVED 2012 2011
R R
Current 26,605,362 31,584,367
26,605,362 31,584,367

Advance payments received are not financial instruments and represent contracts in progress which progress billings
exceed cost incurred plus recognised profit or loss.

During the current financial year Denel SOC Ltd converted R167 389 349m from interest bearing to non-interest bearing
borrowings, as Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd’s's shareholder. Non-Interest bearing borrowings therefore increased to
R536 236 949m (2011: R368 862 400m), of the R536 236 949m, R528 013 800m of the Denel Shareholder Loan to be
converted to Equity.

Non-current loans and borrowings 109,086,482 123,127,561
Current loans and borrowings 65,513,706 167,389,349
Bank overdraft - -

Unsecured loan from Denel SOC Ltd 65,513,706 167,389,349

TOTAL LOANS AND BORROWINGS 174,600,188 290,516,910

The interest bearing borrowing relates to the overdraft facility utilised during the current financial year. The interest bearing
borrowing have been deferred until Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd is in a positive net equity position.

Summary of maturity of borrowings

18 PROVISIONS 2012 2011
R

18.1 NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS 2,620,045 11,437,247
Contract risks and onerous contracts 2,620,045 11,437,247
18.2  CURRENT PROVISIONS 35,625,523 40,705,010
Contract risks and onerous contracts 11,273,339 19,076,423
Product warranty and support 2,093,158 -
Staff related - Performance bonus 21,965,583 19,091,083
Staff related - Retrenchment 293,443 2,537,504
38,245,568 52,142,257

Maturing within 12 months - 14,800

Maturing within 12 to 60 months 100,863,333 100,863,333

Shareholder loan 73,736,855 189,653,577
174,600,188 290,531,710

Weighted average effective interest rates

Unsecured loan from shareholders 8.0% 8.0%
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RECONCILIATION

STAFF RELATED CONTRACT PRODUCT STAFF RELATED ~ STAFF RELATED - TOTAL
ACCUMULATED RISKS AND WARRANTY AND - PERFORMANCE RETRENCHMENT
LEAVE ONEROUS SUPPORT BONUS
CONTRACTS

2012

- 13,893,384 2,093,158 21,965,583 293,443 38,245,568

2011

- 30,513,670 - 19,091,083 2,537,504 52,142,257

CONTRACT RISKS AND ONEROUS
CONTRACTS

RETRENCHMENT COSTS

PRODUCT WARRANTY AND SUPPORT

VARIABLE REMUNERATION
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2012 2011
R R
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 49,426,430 31,269,225
49,426,430 31,269,225
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20 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW 2012 2011
STATEMENT
R R
20.1  RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT WITH CASH RETAINED
FROM OPERATIONS
ADJUSTED FOR: (27,809,330) (14,660,921)
CHANGES IN NET CURRENT ASSETS: 49,259,699 175,342,887
CASH UTILISED IN OPERATIONS (57,021,584) (76,573,231)
21 COMMITMENTS 2012 2011
R R

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

19,847,837

6,692,520
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
CONTRACT LOSSES

22 NON-CANCELLABLE PLANT AND VEHICLES COMPUTER TOTAL
LEASES MACHINERY ~ AND OFFICE  EQUIPMENT
FURNITURE
R R R R

OPERATING LEASES

6,823,183 - 7,159,331 10,161,901

11,587,537 - 1,272,993 12,860,530




118 | ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 RELATED PARTIES

Related party transactions are disclosed in terms of the
requirements of the relevant standard. The materiality has
been considered in the disclosure of these transactions.
Amounts smaller than R1 000 000 have not been included
in the table below.

NATIONAL GOVERNMENT AND STATE
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd operates in an economic
environment currently dominated by business entities
directly or indirectly owned by the Government. As a result
of the constitutional independence of all three spheres of
government in South Africa, only parties within the national
sphere of government will be considered to be related parties.

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Key management is defined as individuals with the
authority and responsibility for planning, directing

and controlling the activities of the business entity. All
individuals who are members of Denel Aerostructures
SOC Ltd Executive Committee and the Board of Directors,
are regarded as Key Management.

Close family members of key management personnel
are considered to be those family members who may
influence, or be influenced by key management in
their dealings with the entity. There are no material
transactions other than the directors’emoluments
detailed in the directors’ report.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

23 RELATED PARTIES
(CONTINUED)

NATIONAL
GOVERNMENT

MAJOR BETWEEN THE ASSOCIATED OTHER

NATIONAL COMPANY COMPANIES RELATED
PUBLIC AND ITS PARTIES
ENTITIES SUBSIDIARIES

Purchases of goods -

Sales of goods 118,782,344
Services rendered -
Services received 8,800
Lease payments -
Interest paid -
Outstanding balances payable 118,382,650

Outstanding balances receivable -

49,350 - - -
23,558 13,081,223 3,868,166 =
- 1,076,711 - -
20,959 42,584,292 = =
960 13,247,197 - -

= 4,290,429 s =

- 207,223,559 - -

= 755,241 = =

Sales of goods 115,854,792
Services rendered 400,512
Services received 4,455
Lease payments -
Interest paid -
Outstanding balances payable 4,230
Outstanding balances receivable 118,175,146

= 13,657,281 11,419,589 =
- 3,331,694 - -
126,827 30,272,086 = 21,059,499
2,348 14,085,663 - -
- 13,982,554 - -

- 539,323,710 - 273,690

684 1,770,160 158,004 =

RELATED PARTIES 2012

(CONTINUED)

SHORT- POST-
TERM EMPLOYEE
EMPLOYEE  BENEFITS
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2011

TOTAL SHORT- POST- TOTAL
TERM EMPLOYEE
EMPLOYEE  BENEFITS

BENEFITS BENEFITS
R R R R R R
COMPENSATION PAID TO KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Ismail Dockrat 2,781,251 182,911 2,964,161 1,883,669 172,557 2,056,226
Christine Slabbert 1,269,376 83,525 1,352,900 350,826 32,832 383,658
4,050,626 266,435 4,317,062 2,234,495 205389 2,439,885

24  FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd is exposed to various
financial risks due to the nature and diversity of its
activities and the use of various financial instruments.
These risks include:

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

Information about Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd
exposure to each of the above risks, its objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing these risks
are included in this note. Denel Aerostructures SOC
Ltd management of capital is also discussed. Further

quantitative disclosures are included throughout Denel
Aerostructures SOC Ltd annual financial statements.

The board of directors has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of Denel Aerostructures
SOC Ltd risk management framework. The board has
delegated its responsibility to Denel Aerostructures SOC
Ltd audit and risk committee, who is responsible for the
development and monitoring of Denel Aerostructures
SOC Ltd risk management policies. The committee meets
three times a year and regularly reports to the board on its
activities. Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence
to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd activities.




24.1 CREDIT RISK

RECEIVABLES FROM CUSTOMERS

T q;

}

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

2012 2011
DOMESTIC FOREIGN TOTAL DOMESTIC FOREIGN TOTAL
R R R R R R
TRADE RECEIVABLES 757,675 30,501,433 31,259,108 222,180 17,540,287 17,762,467
SUNDRY RECEIVABLES 348,661 - 348,661 - 8,576,053 8,576,053
1,106,336 30,501,433 31,607,769 222,180 26,116,340 26,338,520
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AGEING
RECEIVABLES NOT  RECEIVABLES IMPAIRMENT CARRYING VALUE
IMPAIRED IMPAIRED AMOUNT
R R R R
TRADE RECEIVABLES 31,259,108 - - 31,259,108
OTHER RECEIVABLES 348,661 - - 348,661
31,607,769 - - 31,607,769
TRADE RECEIVABLES 17,762,467 189,528 (189,528) 17,762,467
OTHER RECEIVABLES 8,576,053 - - 8,576,053

26,338,520 189,528 (189,528) 26,338,520
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24.2 LIQUIDITY RISK

EXPOSURE TO LIQUIDITY RISK

CONTRACTUAL UNDISCOUNTED CASH FLOWS

CARRYING TOTAL CASH LESSTHAN3  BETWEEN BETWEEN  MORE THAN
AMOUNT FLOWS MONTHS 3AND 12 1AND 5 5YEARS
MONTHS YEARS

R R R R R R

24.3 MARKET RISK INTEREST RATE RISK
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At the reporting date the interest rate profile of Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd interest bearing financial instruments was
as follows:

2012 2011

VARIABLE RATE INSTRUMENTS
Cash and short-term deposits 7,000 7,000
Bank overdraft - -

FAIR VALUE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR FIXED RATE
INSTRUMENTS

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss, therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

CASH FLOW SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR VARIABLE
RATE INSTRUMENTS

A change of 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/ decreased profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. This assumes that all other variables remain constant. The impact on Denel Aerostructures SOC
Ltd equity is equal to the impact on the profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents 35 35

Net effect on profit or loss is equal but opposite for a 50 basis points increase on the financial instruments listed above.

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

CURRENCY RISK

Currency risk arises from the movement in foreign exchange rates. Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd currency exposures result primarily
from the import of raw materials foreign sales of goods and services. Foreign exchange embedded derivatives are recognised when
the Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd has entered into contracts denominated in foreign currencies, which are neither the measurement
currencies of parties to the contract, nor the currencies in which those commodities are routinely traded in international commerce.
Foreign exchange embedded derivatives are not recognised for contracts denominated in a common currency. No speculating in
foreign currency is allowed within Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd.

Treasury is responsible for the hedging of foreign currency exposure in terms of information received. Currency exposures are
hedged based on an 18 month rolling period, which requires any currency exposure forecast for the next 18 months to be covered.
Hedging instruments consists of forward exchange contracts and, to a limited extent, currency options. Revaluations of hedged
positions are performed on a daily basis to check that these are in line with the underlying Foreign Exchange Policy. The hedging
instrument is entered into once the exposure is firm and ascertainable, i.e. there is an underlying contract in place.

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd exposure to currency risk was as follows based on the notional amounts:
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2012 2011
us EURO STERLING us EURO STERLING
DOLLAR DOLLAR
(USD) (EUR) (GBP) (USD) (EUR) (GBP)

ASSETS 3,297,440 543,214 - 5,076,753 34,200 -
Trade receivables - 543,214 - 538,207 34,200 -
Embedded derivatives (export sales) 3,297,440 - - 4,538,519 - -
LIABILITIES (376,133) (560) - - (188,973) -
Trade payables (376,133) (560) - - (188,973) -
Balance sheet exposure 2,921,307 542,654 - 5,076,753 (154,773) -
Forecast transactions: sales 637,517 - - - - -
Forecast transactions: purchases - - - - - -
Gross exposure 3,558,824 542,654 - 5,076,753 (154,773) -
Forward Exchange Contracts
Export sales (637,517) - - (51,158)  (188,421) -
Import = 8,617 = 589,366 33,647 =
NET EXPOSURE 2,921,307 551,271 - 5,614,961  (309,547) -

A 5.0% strengthening of the Rand against the following currencies at 31 March would have increased/(decreased)

profit or loss by the following amounts:

Exposure

us
DOLLAR

(UsD)
1,097,854

2012

EURO

(EUR)
284,185

STERLING us
DOLLAR
(GBP) (USD)
- 1,957,035

2011

EURO

(EUR)
(150,200)

STERLING

(GBP)

A 5.0% weakening of the Rand against the above currencies at 31 March would have had an equal but opposite effect on

the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant. The impact on

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd equity is equal to the impact on the profit or loss.

%
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

24.3 MARKET RISK (CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCY NOTIONAL AMOUNT

1YEAR 2YEARS  3-5YEARS TOTAL LOCAL FAIR
CURRENCY VALUE
AMOUNT

AMOUNT  AMOUNT AMOUNT  AMOUNT R R

PURCHASE CONTRACTS

SALES CONTRACTS

5,132,011 5,299,092

PURCHASE CONTRACTS

4,548,927 5,171,940

SALES CONTRACTS

2,217,235 2,456,814
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES AND FIRM COMMITMENT

FOREIGN CURRENCY NOTIONAL AMOUNT

1YEAR 2YEARS  3-5YEARS TOTAL LOCAL FAIR
CURRENCY  VALUE
AMOUNT

AMOUNT  AMOUNT  AMOUNT  AMOUNT R R

|t

: .-|.1i’liit"'r||tv.
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DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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24.4 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

LOANS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR TOTAL FAIR VALUE
RECEIVABLES AT TRADING CARRYING
AMORTISED VALUE
COST
R R R R R

FINANCIAL ASSETS

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

150,752,660 (224,026,618) (2,659,830) (75,933,788) (75,933,788)

FINANCIAL ASSETS

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

146,290,826 (321,786,135) (7,260,718) (182,756,027) (182,756,027)
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#

A

6. INFORMATION &
SERVICES

CONTACT INFORMATION

Denel Aerostructures SOC Ltd
Company registration number 2006/028012/30

REGISTERED OFFICE IS:
Astro Park

Bonaero Park

Kempton Park

1620

POSTAL ADDRESS IS:
P.O.Box 11

Bonaero Park

1620

TELEPHONE NUMBERS:
011927 2437
011927 4432
011927 3263

FRAUD HOTLINE:
0800 204 880

EMAIL:

marketing@denelaero.co.za

The following people can be contacted for contribution and feedback on the
sustainability report on 011 927 3319:

Ms. C Slabbert

Ms L Viviers

Mr K McPhail
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